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ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 13 OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

(Mark One)

x Annual Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2016

OR

¨ Transition Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the transition period from                     to                    

Commission File Number 1-4702

AMREP CORPORATION

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Oklahoma 59-0936128
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(State or other jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

300 Alexander Park, Suite 204, Princeton, New Jersey 08540
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (609) 716-8200

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock $.10 par value New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the
Securities Act of 1933.

Yes  ¨           No  x

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”).

Yes  ¨           No  x

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Exchange Act during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file
such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes  x           No  ¨
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Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate website, if any,
every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of
this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to submit and
post such files).

Yes  x           No  ¨

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§229.405 of this
chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive
proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this
Form 10-K. x

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer
or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of “large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ¨ Accelerated filer ¨

Non-accelerated filer ¨ Smaller reporting company x
(Do not check if a
smaller reporting
company)

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes  ¨           No  x

As of October 31, 2015, which was the last business day of the Registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal
quarter, the aggregate market value of the Common Stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant was $22,451,260.
Such aggregate market value was computed by reference to the closing sale price of the Registrant’s Common Stock as
quoted on the New York Stock Exchange on such date. For purposes of making this calculation only, the Registrant
has defined affiliates as including all directors and executive officers and certain persons related to them. In making
such calculation, the Registrant is not making a determination of the affiliate or non-affiliate status of any holders of
shares of Common Stock.

As of July 15, 2016, there were 8,071,454 shares of the Registrant’s Common Stock outstanding.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

As stated in Part III of this annual report on Form 10-K, portions of the Registrant’s definitive proxy statement to be
filed within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this annual report on Form 10-K are incorporated
herein by reference.
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PART I

Item 1. Business

GENERAL

The Company1 was organized in 1961 as an Oklahoma corporation and, through its subsidiaries, is primarily engaged
in two business segments: the real estate business operated by AMREP Southwest Inc. (“AMREP Southwest”) and its
subsidiaries and the Fulfillment Services business operated by Palm Coast Data LLC (“Palm Coast”) and its affiliates.
Information concerning industry segments is set forth in Note 20 in the footnotes to the consolidated financial
statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K.

As of July 1, 2016, the Company employed approximately 455 full time employees. The Company’s foreign sales and
activities are not significant. Many of the amounts and percentages presented in this Part I have been rounded for
convenience of presentation. All references in this Part I to 2016 and 2015 mean the Company’s fiscal years ended
April 30, 2016 and 2015, unless otherwise qualified.

REAL ESTATE OPERATIONS

The Company conducts its real estate business through AMREP Southwest and its subsidiaries, with these activities
occurring primarily in the City of Rio Rancho and certain adjoining areas of Sandoval County, New Mexico.
References below to Rio Rancho include the City and such adjoining areas. The City of Rio Rancho is the third largest
city in New Mexico with a population of approximately 94,000. The city’s population grew by approximately 30%
from calendar year 2006 through 2015.

Properties – New Mexico

Rio Rancho consists of approximately 91,000 acres in Sandoval County near Albuquerque, of which approximately
74,100 acres have been platted into approximately 114,680 residential and commercial lots, approximately 16,500
acres are dedicated to community facilities, roads and drainage and the remainder is unplatted land. As of July 1,
2016, AMREP Southwest and its subsidiaries owned approximately 18,000 acres in Rio Rancho. AMREP Southwest
and its subsidiaries sell both developed and undeveloped lots to national, regional and local homebuilders, commercial
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and industrial property developers and others.

Activities conducted or arranged by AMREP Southwest and its subsidiaries include the obtaining of necessary
governmental approvals (“entitlements”), installation of utilities and necessary storm drains, ensuring the availability of
water service from the City of Rio Rancho and building or improving of roads necessary for land development.
AMREP Southwest and its subsidiaries develop both residential lots and sites for commercial and industrial use as
demand warrants. The engineering work at Rio Rancho is performed by both AMREP Southwest employees and
outside firms, but all development work is performed by outside contractors. AMREP Southwest personnel market
land at Rio Rancho, both directly and through brokers.

The following land holdings in New Mexico are where AMREP Southwest is currently focusing its residential land
development activities:

·
Lomas Encantadas. Lomas Encantadas is an approximately 430 acre master-planned subdivision located in the
eastern section of Unit 20 in the City of Rio Rancho. As of July 1, 2016, Lomas Encantadas was planned to have
1,392 total residential lots, of which 451 planned residential lots were previously sold by AMREP Southwest.

·
Hawk Site. Hawk Site is an approximately 460 acre master-planned subdivision located in the northern section of
Unit 25 in the City of Rio Rancho. As of July 1, 2016, Hawk Site was planned to have 1,252 total residential lots, of
which 213 planned residential lots were previously sold by AMREP Southwest.

1 As used herein, “Company” includes the Registrant and its subsidiaries unless the context requires or indicates
otherwise.

2
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·

Enchanted Hills/Commerce Center. Enchanted Hills/Commerce Center is an approximately 1,320 acre
master-planned subdivision located in the eastern section of Unit 20 in the City of Rio Rancho. As of July 1, 2016,
AMREP Southwest had developed and sold 2,767 out of 2,888 total planned residential lots, and 121 planned
residential lots remain owned by AMREP Southwest.

·
Paseo Gateway. Paseo Gateway is an approximately 277 acre master-planned subdivision located in the southern
section of Unit 20 in the City of Rio Rancho. As of July 1, 2016, development work had not commenced at Paseo
Gateway.

The following table presents information on the developed and under development residential and
commercial/industrial land holdings in New Mexico of AMREP Southwest and its subsidiaries as of July 1, 2016:

Developed2 Under Development3

ResidentialCommercial
/ Industrial Residential Commercial

/ Industrial Undeveloped4

Lots Acres
Planned
Residential
Lots

Acres Acres Acres

Lomas Encantadas 106 2 835 298 4 -
Hawk Site 53 21 986 195 131 -
Enchanted Hills/Commerce Center - 52 121 27 - -
Paseo Gateway - - - - - 278

Other undeveloped property in New Mexico of AMREP Southwest and its subsidiaries as of July 1, 2016 included
approximately 17,000 acres, of which approximately 20% was property that AMREP Southwest and its subsidiaries
had 90% contiguous ownership, 30% was property that AMREP Southwest and its subsidiaries had at least 50% but
less than 90% contiguous ownership and 50% was property that AMREP Southwest and its subsidiaries had less than
50% contiguous ownership. High contiguous ownership areas are suitable for special assessment districts or city
redevelopment areas that may allow for future development under the auspices of local government. Low contiguous
ownership areas may require the purchase of a sufficient number of adjoining lots to create tracts suitable for
development or that may be offered for sale individually or in small groups.

2 Developed lots/acreage include any tracts of land that have been entitled with infrastructure work that is
substantially complete.
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3 Acreage under development includes real estate for which entitlement or infrastructure work is currently being
completed. However, there is no assurance that the acreage under development will be developed because of the
nature and cost of the approval and development process and market demand for a particular use. In addition, the mix
of residential and commercial acreage under development may change prior to final development. The development of
this acreage will require significant additional financing or other sources of funding, which may not be available.

4 There is no assurance that undeveloped acreage will be developed because of the nature and cost of the approval and
development process and market demand for a particular use. Undeveloped acreage includes real estate that can be
sold “as is” (e.g., where no entitlement or infrastructure work has begun on such property).

3
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Land sales by AMREP Southwest and its subsidiaries in Rio Rancho during 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

Acres
Sold Revenue Revenue

Per Acre5

2016:
Developed
Residential 14 $5,214,000 $ 372,000
Commercial - - -
Total Developed 14 5,214,000 372,000
Under Development or Undeveloped 47 483,000 10,000
Total 61 $5,697,000 $ 93,000

2015:
Developed
Residential 14 $4,660,000 $ 333,000
Commercial 1 212,000 212,000
Total Developed 15 4,872,000 325,000
Under Development or Undeveloped 171 1,011,000 6,000
Total 186 $5,883,000 $ 32,000

In July 2016, at the request of AMREP Southwest, the City of Rio Rancho approved the formation of a public
improvement district over a portion of the Lomas Encantadas subdivision and a portion of the Enchanted
Hills/Commerce Center subdivision. The public improvement district is expected, over a period of at least thirty years
commencing in fiscal year 2018, to reimburse AMREP Southwest for certain on-site and off-site costs of developing
the subdivisions by imposing a special levy on the real property owners within the district.

In addition, during 2016, AMREP Southwest began the process of developing certain of its commercial properties in
Rio Rancho to be leased to tenants. Any such development will require, among other things, additional financing or
other sources of funding, which may not be available, and the ability to attract appropriate tenants. During 2016, a
subsidiary of AMREP Southwest constructed an approximately 2,200 square foot, single tenant retail building on
property owned by the Company pursuant to a lease with a national retailer of specialty coffee, with lease revenue
commencing at the end of 2016. In the first quarter of fiscal year 2017, the Company sold this property and received
approximately $1,466,000 after expenses and payment in full of the outstanding principal balance of the loan
associated with the development of the property.

The continuity and future growth of the Company’s real estate business, if the Company pursues such growth, will
require that the Company acquire new properties in or near Rio Rancho or expand to other markets to provide
sufficient assets to support a meaningful real estate development business.
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AMREP Southwest and its subsidiaries compete with other owners and developers of land in the Rio Rancho and
Albuquerque area that offer for sale developed and undeveloped residential lots and sites for commercial/industrial
use.

5 Revenue per acre may not calculate precisely due to the rounding of acres sold to the nearest acre and the rounding
of revenue to the nearest thousand dollars.

4
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Other Real Estate Interests

A subsidiary of AMREP Southwest owns two tracts of land and certain subsurface oil, gas and mineral interests in
Colorado, including one property of approximately 160 acres planned for approximately 410 homes and two
properties of approximately 5 acres each zoned for commercial use.  In addition, in Rio Rancho, AMREP Southwest
and its subsidiaries own subsurface oil, gas and mineral interests in approximately 55,000 “surface” acres of land owned
by AMREP Southwest and its subsidiaries or by others in Rio Rancho.

FULFILLMENT SERVICES

The Fulfillment Services business performs fulfillment and contact center services, including subscriber list and
database management, payment and order processing and accounting, subscriber mailing services, customer service
and contact center management, data processing and business intelligence solutions, print and digital marketing
solutions, and product fulfillment warehousing, processing and distribution. These services are performed for many
clients, but some clients may only utilize certain of them. The Company’s Fulfillment Services business performs
services for consumer publications, trade (business) publications, membership organizations, non-profit organizations,
government agencies and other direct marketers.

As of April 30, 2016, the Company’s Fulfillment Services business maintained databases of approximately 21 million
active subscribers for its clients. In a typical month, the Company’s Fulfillment Services business produces or provides
data for approximately 15 million mailing labels for its clients and processes over 7 million pieces of outgoing mail
for them. Total revenues for the Company’s Fulfillment Services business were $34,757,000 for 2016.

There are a number of companies that perform fulfillment and contact center services for consumer publications, trade
(business) publications, membership organizations, non-profit organizations, government agencies and other direct
marketers and with which the Company’s Fulfillment Services business competes, including two fulfillment service
providers that are larger than the Company’s Fulfillment Services business. There is intense competition to obtain
fulfillment and contact center services customers.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS – BUSINESSES RECENTLY SOLD

Newsstand Distribution Services Business and Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services Business
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Prior to February 9, 2015, the Company was also engaged in the Newsstand Distribution Services business and the
Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business, operated by Kable Media Services, Inc., Kable Distribution
Services, Inc. (“Kable Distribution”), Kable News Company, Inc., Kable News International, Inc., Kable Distribution
Services of Canada, Ltd. and Kable Product Services, Inc. (collectively, the “Company Group”). The Newsstand
Distribution Services business operated a national distribution business that distributed publications, and the Product
Packaging and Fulfillment Services business offered electronic and traditional commerce solutions to customers.

On February 9, 2015, American Investment Republic Co. (“ARIC”), a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a stock
purchase agreement (the “Stock Purchase Agreement”) with DFI Holdings, LLC (“Distribution Buyer”) and KPS Holdco,
LLC (“Products Buyer”, and together with Distribution Buyer, the “MD Buyers”), where each MD Buyer was controlled
by Michael P. Duloc. The closing of the transactions contemplated by the Stock Purchase Agreement occurred on
February 9, 2015.

Prior to February 9, 2015, Mr. Duloc was the chief executive officer and president of the Company Group and certain
other subsidiaries of the Company and was a principal executive officer of the Company. In connection with the
closing of the transactions contemplated by the Stock Purchase Agreement, effective on February 9, 2015, Mr. Duloc
was removed as an officer of each direct and indirect subsidiary of the Company and ceased to be a principal
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Duloc is the son-in-law of Nicholas G. Karabots, a significant shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Duloc’s spouse, who is Mr. Karabots’ daughter, is an officer of one of Mr. Karabots’ companies to
which the Company Group provided services and to which the Company’s continuing subscription fulfillment business
provides services.

5
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Pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, Products Buyer acquired, through the purchase of all of the capital stock
of Kable Product Services, Inc., the Company’s Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business. Immediately
following such acquisition, pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, Distribution Buyer acquired, through the
purchase of all of the capital stock of Kable Media Services, Inc. (“KMS”), the Company’s Newsstand Distribution
Services business operated by KMS’s direct and indirect subsidiaries, namely Kable Distribution, Kable News
Company, Inc., Kable News International, Inc. and Kable Distribution Services of Canada, Ltd.

Consideration for MD Buyers acquiring the Company Group included MD Buyers paying ARIC $2,000,000, which
consisted of $400,000 of cash paid by MD Buyers on February 9, 2015 and $1,600,000 paid by execution by MD
Buyers of a secured promissory note, dated as of February 9, 2015 (the “Buyer Promissory Note”).

As a result of the transaction, other than (i) the elimination of substantially all of the intercompany amounts of the
Company Group due to or from the Company and its direct and indirect subsidiaries (not including the Company
Group) through offset and capital contribution and (ii) certain other limited items identified in the Stock Purchase
Agreement and the agreements entered into in connection with the Stock Purchase Agreement, the Company Group
retained all of its pre-closing assets, liabilities, rights and obligations. At February 9, 2015, the Company Group had
assets of $4,564,000 and liabilities of $15,732,000, which included $11,605,000 of negative working capital with
respect to Kable Distribution. The negative working capital of Kable Distribution represented its net payment
obligation due to publisher clients and other third parties. The Company recognized a pretax gain of $10,479,000 on
its financial statements as a result of the transaction in the fourth quarter of 2015.

The following agreements, each dated as of February 9, 2015, were entered into in connection with the Stock Purchase
Agreement:

·

Buyer Promissory Note. MD Buyers entered into the Buyer Promissory Note, which required MD Buyers to pay
ARIC $1,600,000 in 24 equal monthly instalments, commencing on February 1, 2016, with interest due and payable
monthly commencing on March 1, 2015. Interest accrued at a rate per annum determined on the first business day of
each month equal to three percent plus the “prime rate,” as published in The Wall Street Journal. The Buyer Promissory
Note contained customary events of default and representations, warranties and covenants provided by MD Buyers to
ARIC, and was secured by a pledge of substantially all of the personal property of MD Buyers and the Company
Group, pari passu with other secured obligations owed by MD Buyers and the Company Group to ARIC under the
Stock Purchase Agreement and the agreements entered into in connection with the Stock Purchase Agreement.

·

Line of Credit. ARIC provided the Company Group with a secured revolving line of credit pursuant to a line of credit
promissory note (the “Line of Credit”). The Line of Credit permitted the Company Group to borrow from ARIC up to a
maximum principal amount of $2,000,000 from February 9, 2015 until May 11, 2015, $1,500,000 from May 12, 2015
until August 5, 2016 and $1,000,000 from August 6, 2016 until February 9, 2017, with interest due and payable
monthly commencing on March 1, 2015.
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The principal amount permitted to be borrowed under the Line of Credit was subject to the following borrowing base:
(a) from February 9, 2015 until May 11, 2015, (i) 50% of eligible accounts receivable of the Company Group and (ii)
45% of eligible unbilled receivables of Kable Distribution and (b) from May 12, 2015 until February 9, 2017, (i) 50%
of eligible accounts receivable of the Company Group and (ii) 30% of eligible unbilled receivables of Kable
Distribution.

Amounts outstanding under the Line of Credit accrued interest at a rate per annum as determined on the first business
day of each month equal to three percent plus the “prime rate,” as published in The Wall Street Journal. Amounts
available but not advanced under the Line of Credit accrued “unused” fees at a rate of 1.0% per annum, payable on the
first day of each month. The Line of Credit contained customary events of default and representations, warranties and
covenants provided by the Company Group to ARIC, and was secured by a pledge of substantially all of the personal
property of MD Buyers and the Company Group, pari passu with other secured obligations owed by MD Buyers and
the Company Group to ARIC under the Stock Purchase Agreement and the agreements entered into in connection
with the Stock Purchase Agreement.

6
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·

Security Agreement. MD Buyers, the Company Group and ARIC entered into a security agreement (the “Security
Agreement”) pursuant to which MD Buyers and the Company Group pledged and granted a security interest in
substantially all of their personal property to ARIC in order to secure the obligations of each MD Buyer and each
member of the Company Group, including under the Stock Purchase Agreement, the Line of Credit, the Buyer
Promissory Note and the other agreements entered into in connection with the Stock Purchase Agreement.

The Company and its remaining direct and indirect subsidiaries retained their obligations under the Company’s defined
benefit pension plan, without any funding acceleration or other changes in any of the obligations thereunder as a result
of the sale of the Company Group. In addition, a subsidiary of the Company retained its ownership of a warehouse
leased to the Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business with a term that expired in November 2018 and
remained subject to a promissory note to a third party lender with a maturity date of February 2018.

In January 2016, ARIC entered into a letter agreement with MD Buyers and the Company Group, which resolved
certain events of default by MD Buyers and the Company Group. Among other things, the letter agreement provided
the following: payment to ARIC of approximately $1,600,000, representing the full amount of principal and interest
outstanding under the Buyer Promissory Note; termination of the Line of Credit (no amount of principal was
outstanding under the Line of Credit as of the termination date); termination of the Security Agreement; and a release
and indemnity in favor of ARIC and its affiliates with respect to the events of default and the resolution thereof.

In February 2016, a subsidiary of the Company sold to a third party the warehouse leased to the Product Packaging
and Fulfillment Services business and the promissory note to a third party lender related thereto with an outstanding
principal balance of $3,992,000 was paid in full from the proceeds of the sale.

Staffing Services Business

Prior to April 10, 2015, the Company was also engaged in the Staffing Services business, operated by Kable Staffing
Resources LLC (“KSR”). The Staffing Services business provided temporary employees to local companies in the
Fairfield, Ohio area. On April 10, 2015, KSR entered into an asset purchase agreement (the “Asset Purchase
Agreement”) with TSJ Staffing, LLC (“Staffing Buyer”), pursuant to which Staffing Buyer acquired, through the
purchase of certain assets of KSR, the Company’s Staffing Services business. The closing of the transactions
contemplated by the Asset Purchase Agreement occurred on April 10, 2015.

Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement, Staffing Buyer (1) acquired from KSR all of KSR’s assets, other than cash,
accounts receivables and certain other assets of KSR as of April 10, 2015, and (2) assumed all of KSR’s obligations
and liabilities relating to or arising out of KSR’s office lease and KSR’s post-closing obligations and liabilities with
respect to the purchased assets. The Asset Purchase Agreement provided standard representations, warranties,
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covenants and indemnities.

Staffing Buyer paid KSR $250,000, all of which was paid in cash on April 10, 2015. In connection with the
transaction, KSR retained its cash, accounts receivables, accounts payable and accrued expenses as of April 10, 2015.
As of April 10, 2015, KSR had approximately $1,482,000 of cash, $1,609,000 of accounts receivable and $315,000 of
accounts payable and accrued expenses. The Company recognized a pretax gain of $250,000 on its financial
statements as a result of the transaction in the fourth quarter of 2015.

7
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company maintains a website at www.amrepcorp.com. The Company’s annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are available free of charge through the
Company’s website as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with, or furnished to,
the Securities and Exchange Commission. The information found on the Company’s website is not part of this or any
other report that the Company files with, or furnishes to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Not required.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

The Company’s executive offices are located in approximately 2,600 square feet of leased space in an office building
in Princeton, New Jersey. The Company’s Fulfillment Services business is located in two owned facilities in Palm
Coast, Florida comprising approximately 204,000 square feet of space, each of which is subject to a first lien
mortgage in favor of the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (the “PBGC”) as described in Item 7. The Company’s
real estate business is located in approximately 4,900 square feet of leased space in an office building in Rio Rancho,
New Mexico. In addition, other real estate inventory and investment properties are described in Item 1, which are
subject in part to a mortgage described in Item 7. The Company believes its facilities are adequate for its current
requirements.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the normal course of
business. While the ultimate results of these matters cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes that they
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, liquidity or results of
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operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Set forth below is certain information concerning persons who are the current executive officers of the Company.

Rory Burke, age 60, has been President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company’s Fulfillment Services business
since March 2014. From November 2011 to March 2014, he was Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer of the Company’s Fulfillment Services business.  From 2009 to October 2011, Mr. Burke was a National Sales
Executive for CDS Global, Inc., a subscription and product fulfillment provider.  From 2003 to 2009, he was
Executive Vice President of Kable Fulfillment Services, Inc., one of Palm Coast’s predecessors.  Prior to joining Kable
Fulfillment Services, Inc., Mr. Burke held various operational, client service and executive leadership positions with
Neodata Services, Inc. and Electronic Data Systems, both subscription and product fulfillment providers.

8
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Clifford R. Martin, age 58, has been Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since May 2016.
Mr. Martin was Treasurer of the Company from September 2012 to April 2016 and Director of Accounting for the
Company from 2006 to April 2016. Prior to joining the Company in 2006, Mr. Martin held managerial positions at the
Atlantic City Hilton Hotel and Casino Resort, Bally’s Hotel and Casino Resort, the Prince Sports Group and Arthur
Young & Company.

Peter M. Pizza, age 65, had been Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company from 2001 to April
2016 and was Vice President and Controller of the Company from 1997 to 2001. Mr. Pizza ceased being an officer
effective April 30, 2016, and his employment with the Company is expected to end on August 1, 2016.

Christopher V. Vitale, age 40, has been Executive Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer and General Counsel
of the Company since September 2014. From March 2013 to September 2014, Mr. Vitale had been Vice President and
General Counsel of the Company. From April 2012 to March 2013, he was Vice President, Legal at Franklin Square
Holdings, L.P. and from August 2011 to March 2012, he was Assistant Vice President, Legal at Franklin Square
Holdings, L.P., a national sponsor and distributor of investment products, where he was responsible for securities
matters, corporate governance and general corporate matters. From March 2011 to July 2011, Mr. Vitale was the
Chief Administrative Officer at WorldGate Communications, Inc. (“WorldGate”), and from 2009 to July 2011 he was
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary at WorldGate, a provider of digital voice and video phone
services and video phones. In 2012, WorldGate filed a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 7 of the United
States Bankruptcy Code in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware. Prior to joining
WorldGate, Mr. Vitale was an attorney with the law firms of Morgan, Lewis & Bockius LLP and Sullivan &
Cromwell LLP.

The executive officers are elected or appointed by the board of directors of the Company or its appropriate subsidiary
to serve until the appointment or election and qualification of their successors or their earlier death, resignation or
removal.

PART II

Many of the amounts and percentages presented in this Part II have been rounded for convenience of presentation. All
references in this Part II to 2016 and 2015 mean the Company’s fiscal years ended April 30, 2016 and 2015, unless
otherwise qualified.

Item 5.Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities
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The Company’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “AXR”. On July 1, 2016,
there were approximately 582 holders of record of the common stock. The range of high and low sales prices of the
common stock on the New York Stock Exchange for the last two fiscal years by quarter is presented below:

Price Range
High Low

Fiscal 2015
First Quarter $7.03 $3.79
Second Quarter $6.41 $3.83
Third Quarter $4.26 $3.60
Fourth Quarter $5.68 $3.75

Price Range
High Low

Fiscal 2016
First Quarter $5.35 $4.99
Second Quarter $5.38 $4.25
Third Quarter $4.71 $3.90
Fourth Quarter $4.60 $3.66

9
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The Company’s common stock is often thinly traded. As a result, large transactions in the Company’s common stock
may be difficult to execute in a short time frame and may cause significant fluctuations in the price of the Company’s
common stock. Among other reasons, the stock is thinly traded due to the fact that six of the Company’s shareholders
beneficially owned approximately 72.2% of the outstanding common stock as of July 27, 2016. The average trading
volume in the Company’s common stock on the New York Stock Exchange over the thirty-day trading period ending
on April 30, 2016 was approximately 2,300 shares per day.

In addition, the Company is an Oklahoma corporation and the anti-takeover provisions of its certificate of
incorporation and of Oklahoma law generally prohibit the Company from engaging in “business combinations” with an
“interested shareholder,” as those terms are defined therein, unless the holders of at least two-thirds of the Company’s
then outstanding common stock approve the transaction. Consequently, the concurrence of the Company’s largest
shareholder, Mr. Karabots and his affiliates, would generally be needed for any “interested shareholder” (other than Mr.
Karabots and his affiliates) to acquire control of the Company, even if a change in control would be beneficial to the
Company’s other shareholders.

Dividend Policy

The Company has paid no cash dividends on its common stock since fiscal year 2008. The Company may consider
special dividends from time-to-time in the future in light of conditions then existing, including earnings, financial
condition, cash position, capital requirements and other needs. No assurance is given that there will be any such future
dividends declared.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

See Item 12 of this annual report on Form 10-K that incorporates such information by reference from the Company’s
Proxy Statement for its 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Not required.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
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INTRODUCTION

For a description of the Company’s business, refer to Item 1 of Part I of this annual report on Form 10-K. As indicated
in Item 1, the Company, through its subsidiaries, is primarily engaged in two business segments: the real estate
business operated by AMREP Southwest and its subsidiaries and the Fulfillment Services business operated by Palm
Coast and its affiliates. Data concerning industry segments is set forth in Note 20 of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K. The Company’s foreign sales and activities are not
significant.

Prior to February 9, 2015, the Company was also engaged in the Newsstand Distribution Services business and the
Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business. On February 9, 2015, the Newsstand Distribution Services
business and the Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business were sold (refer to Item 1 of Part I of this
annual report on Form 10-K for more detail). In addition, prior to April 10, 2015, the Company was also engaged in
the Staffing Services business. On April 10, 2015, the Staffing Services business was sold (refer to Item 1 of Part I of
this annual report on Form 10-K for more detail). The Company’s Newsstand Distribution Services business, Product
Packaging and Fulfillment Services business and Staffing Services business have been classified as discontinued
operations in the financial statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K.

The following provides information that management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of the
Company’s consolidated results of operations and financial condition. The discussion should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.

10
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The Company prepares its financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The Company discloses its significant accounting policies in the notes to its audited
consolidated financial statements.

The preparation of such financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of those
financial statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Areas that
require significant judgments and estimates to be made include: (i) allowances for doubtful accounts; (ii) real estate
cost of sales calculations, which are based on land development budgets and estimates of costs to complete; (iii) cash
flow, asset groupings and valuation assumptions in performing asset impairment tests of long-lived assets (including
real estate inventories) and assets held for sale; (iv) actuarially determined defined benefit pension plan obligations
and other pension plan accounting and disclosures; (v) risk assessment of uncertain tax positions; and (vi) the
determination of the recoverability of net deferred tax assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

There are numerous critical assumptions that may influence accounting estimates in these and other areas.
Management bases its critical assumptions on historical experience, third-party data and various other estimates that it
believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The most critical assumptions made in arriving at these accounting
estimates include the following:

·

management determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by attempting to identify troubled accounts by
analyzing the credit risk of specific customers and by using historical experience applied to the aging of
accounts and, where appropriate within the real estate business, by reviewing any collateral which may
secure a receivable;

·
real estate development costs are incurred throughout the life of a project, and the costs of initial sales from a project
frequently must include a portion of costs that have been budgeted based on engineering estimates or other studies,
but not yet incurred;

·asset impairment determinations are based upon the intended use of assets, the grouping of those assets, the expected
future cash flows and estimates of fair value of assets. For real estate projects under development, an estimate of
future cash flows on an undiscounted basis is determined using estimated future expenditures necessary to complete
such projects and using management’s best estimates about sales prices and holding periods. Testing of long-lived
assets includes an estimate of future cash flows on an undiscounted basis using estimated revenue streams, operating
margins, administrative expenses and terminal values. The estimation process involved in determining if assets have
been impaired and in the determination of estimated future cash flows is inherently uncertain because it requires
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estimates of future revenues and costs, as well as future events and conditions. If the excess of undiscounted cash
flows over the carrying value of a particular asset group is small, there is a greater risk of future impairment and any
resulting impairment charges could be material;

·

defined benefit pension plan obligations and plan accounting and disclosures are based upon numerous assumptions
and estimates, including the expected rate of investment return on pension plan assets, the discount rate used to
determine the present value of liabilities, and certain employee-related factors such as turnover, retirement age and
mortality;

· the Company assesses risk for uncertain tax positions and recognizes the financial statement effects of a tax position
when it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination by tax authorities; and

·

The Company provides a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets unless, based upon the available
evidence, it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized. In making this determination, the
Company projects its future earnings (including currently unrealized gains on real estate inventory) for the future
recoverability of net deferred tax assets ($11,283,000 as of April 30, 2016).

11
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended April 30, 2016 Compared to Year Ended April 30, 2015

For 2016, the Company reported a total net loss of $10,224,000, or $1.27 per share, compared to total net income of
$11,320,000, or $1.43 per share for 2015. Results for 2016 were solely from continuing operations. Results for 2015
consisted of (i) a net loss from continuing operations of $3,584,000, or $0.45 per share and (ii) net income from
discontinued operations of $14,904,000, or $1.88 per share.  A discussion of continuing operations and discontinued
operations follows.

Continuing Operations

For 2016, the Company’s continuing operations recorded a net loss of $10,224,000, or $1.27 per share, compared to a
net loss of $3,584,000, or $0.45 per share, in 2015. The results for 2016 included a pretax, non-cash impairment
charge of $7,900,000 ($4,977,000 after tax, or $0.62 per share), which was comprised of impairment charges of
$3,094,000 in property, plant and equipment and $4,806,000 in intangible and other assets, and in each case related to
the recoverability of long-lived assets of the Fulfillment Services business. In addition, the results for 2016 included
pretax, non-cash impairment charges of $2,506,000 ($1,579,000 after tax, or $0.20 per share), reflecting primarily the
write-down of certain real estate inventory. The results for 2015 included pretax, non-cash impairment charges of
$2,580,000 ($1,625,000 after tax, or $0.21 per share), reflecting primarily the write-down of certain real estate
inventory and discontinuance of the development of certain software in the Fulfillment Services business. Excluding
the impairment charges in both years, results of continuing operations for 2016 were a net loss of $3,668,000, or $0.46
per share, compared to a net loss of $1,959,000, or $0.25 per share, for 2015. Revenues for 2016 were $41,664,000
compared to $49,790,000 in 2015.

Revenues from land sales at AMREP Southwest decreased from $5,883,000 in 2015 to $5,697,000 in 2016, which
included revenue from developed residential land sales of $4,660,000 in 2015 and $5,214,000 in 2016. The number of
new construction single family residential starts in Rio Rancho by AMREP Southwest customers and other builders
increased from 410 in 2015 to 534 in 2016, an increase of 30%.

In Rio Rancho, the Company offers for sale both developed and undeveloped lots to national, regional and local
homebuilders, commercial and industrial property developers and others. The Company sold 61 acres of land in 2016
at an average selling price of $93,000 per acre compared to 186 acres of land in 2015 at an average selling price of
$32,000 per acre. The increase in the average selling price per acre was due to the higher proportion of developed land
sold in 2016 compared to 2015 when most acres sold were undeveloped land. The average gross profit percentage on
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land sales before indirect costs was 14% for 2016 compared to 26% for 2015. As a result of many factors, including
the nature and timing of specific transactions and the type and location of land being sold, revenues, average selling
prices and related average gross profits from land sales can vary significantly from period to period and prior results
are not necessarily a good indication of what may occur in future periods. In addition, AMREP Southwest recorded
pretax, non-cash impairment charges on certain real estate inventory and investment assets of $2,506,000 in 2016 and
$1,809,000 in 2015. In both years, the impairment charges were primarily related to take-back lots reacquired in prior
years that initially were recorded at fair market value less estimated costs to sell and are subsequently measured at the
lower of cost or fair market value less estimated costs to sell. In addition, 2016 included impairment charges related to
certain holdings of AMREP Southwest in the Hawk Site subdivision. Fair market value was based on third party
appraisals of portions of AMREP Southwest’s real estate that in each year showed a reduction in the fair market value
from the prior year. AMREP Southwest may experience future impairment charges.

Revenues from the Company’s Fulfillment Services operations decreased from $43,684,000 for 2015 to $34,757,000
for 2016. Magazine publishers are one of the principal customers of the Company’s Fulfillment Services operations,
and these customers have continued to be negatively impacted by increased competition from new media sources,
alternative technologies for the distribution, storage and consumption of media content, weakness in advertising
revenues, and increases in paper costs, printing costs and postal rates. The result has been reduced subscription sales,
which has caused publishers to close some magazine titles, change subscription fulfillment providers and seek more
favorable terms from Palm Coast and its competitors when contracts are up for bid or renewal. This, in turn, resulted
in lower than expected 2016 revenues and operating results for the Fulfillment Services business and a change in the
Company’s internally projected future cash flows from that segment. As a result, the Company reassessed the
recoverability of the Fulfillment Services long-lived assets and determined that a $7,900,000 non-cash impairment
charge was necessary in the quarter ended April 30, 2016.

12
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The Fulfillment Services business recorded an impairment charge of $771,000 in 2015 due to the discontinuance of
the development of certain software. This impairment charge included previously capitalized software costs, internal
labor costs and third party consulting costs.

There are a number of companies that perform fulfillment and contact center services for consumer publications, trade
(business) publications, membership organizations, non-profit organizations, government agencies and other direct
marketers and with which the Company’s Fulfillment Services business competes, including two fulfillment service
providers that are larger than the Company’s Fulfillment Services business. There is intense competition to obtain
fulfillment and contact center services customers, which results in price sensitivity that makes it difficult for the
Company to increase or even maintain its prices.

Other revenues increased by $987,000 in 2016 as compared to 2015. The increase was primarily due to (i) revenues
from the rental of a warehouse facility in Fairfield, Ohio, (ii) a gain recognized on the sale of the same warehouse in
February 2016 and (iii) increased revenue recognized by one of AMREP Southwest’s subsidiaries from an oil and gas
lease entered into during the second quarter of 2015. For further detail regarding the oil and gas lease, refer to Note 11
in the footnotes to the financial statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Operating expenses for the Company’s Fulfillment Services business were $31,764,000 (91.4% of related revenues) for
2016 compared to $37,265,000 (85.3% of related revenues) for 2015. The decrease of $5,501,000 (14.8%) was
primarily due to decreased payroll and benefits and supplies expense, both reflecting the lower business volumes,
together with reduced facilities costs. Other operating expenses increased $138,000 (9.9%) for 2016 compared to the
prior year, primarily due to increased real estate taxes in Rio Rancho, as well as increased legal and professional fees
incurred in the formation of public improvement districts for certain development areas in Rio Rancho.

General and administrative expenses of the Fulfillment Services operations decreased $1,190,000 (27.2%) for 2016
compared to the prior year, primarily due to decreased payroll and benefits and one-time facilities expenses incurred
in April 2015 related to exiting leased facilities in Colorado.

Interest expense decreased by $254,000 (15.7%) for 2016 compared to the prior year, primarily due to lower principal
amounts borrowed by AMREP Southwest.

The Company’s effective tax rate for continuing operations was 33.8% in 2016 compared to 37.3% in 2015. The
difference between the statutory tax rate and the effective rate of the tax benefit in 2016 was due to the recognition of
valuation allowances that totaled $910,000 for certain state deferred tax assets that were deemed not likely to be
realized. The total tax effect of gross unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying financial statements at both April
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30, 2016 and 2015 was $58,000, which, if recognized, would have an impact on the effective tax rate. The Company
believes it is reasonably possible that the liability for unrecognized tax benefits will not change in the next twelve
months.

Discontinued Operations

Net income from discontinued operations was $14,904,000, or $1.88 per share, in 2015. There were no results for
discontinued operations for 2016. The results from discontinued operations for 2015 included a pretax gain of
$11,155,000 ($7,028,000 after tax, or $0.89 per share) from a settlement agreement in the Newsstand Distribution
business with a major customer and a pretax gain of $10,729,000 (or $7,608,000 after tax, or $0.96 per share)
resulting from the sales of the Newsstand Distribution Services business, the Product Packaging and Fulfillment
Services business and the Staffing Services business. The results for 2015 were also favorably impacted by the
reversal of a previously recorded bad debt reserve of $1,500,000 ($945,000 after tax, or $0.12 per share) in the
Newsstand Distribution business as a result of revised estimates of magazine returns and other customer statement
credits. Excluding the gains from the settlement agreement with the major customer, the sales of the businesses and
the reversal of the bad debt reserve, the pretax loss from discontinued operations was $1,247,000 ($677,000 after tax,
or $0.09 per share).

13
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

AMREP Corporation is a holding company that conducts substantially all of its operations through subsidiaries. As a
holding company, AMREP Corporation is dependent on its available funds and on distributions of funds from
subsidiaries to pay expenses and fund operations. The Company’s primary sources of funding for working capital
requirements are cash flow from operations and existing cash balances. The Company’s liquidity is affected by many
factors, including some that are based on normal operations and some that are related to the industries in which the
Company operates and the economy generally.

Real Estate

The primary sources of funding for working capital requirements of the Company’s real estate business are cash flow
from operations, which has been minimal in recent years due to the conditions in its real estate markets, and cash
advances made to it by its parent. AMREP Southwest also has a loan agreement that matures December 1, 2017,
which does not allow for additional borrowings. Land investments generally cannot be sold quickly, and the ability of
the Company’s real estate business to sell properties has been and will continue to be affected by market conditions.
The ability of the Company’s real estate business to pay down debt, reduce interest costs or acquire properties is
dependent upon its ability to sell the properties it has selected for disposition at the prices and within the deadlines
AMREP Southwest has established for each property.

AMREP Southwest has a loan from a company owned by Nicholas G. Karabots, a significant shareholder of the
Company and in which another major shareholder and director of the Company has a 20% participation. The loan had
an outstanding principal amount of $12,384,000 at April 30, 2016 and of $7,983,000 at July 15, 2016, is scheduled to
mature on December 1, 2017, bears interest payable monthly at 8.5% per annum, is secured by a mortgage on certain
real property of AMREP Southwest in Rio Rancho and by a pledge of the stock of its subsidiary, Outer Rim
Investments, Inc. (which owns approximately 12,000 acres, for the most part scattered lots, in Sandoval County, New
Mexico and which are not currently being offered for sale), requires that a cash reserve of at least $500,000 be
maintained with the lender to fund interest payments and is subject to a number of restrictive covenants including a
requirement that AMREP Southwest maintain a minimum tangible net worth and a restriction on AMREP Southwest
making distributions and other payments to its parent company beyond a stated management fee. The total book value
of the real property collateralizing the loan was approximately $59,361,000 as of April 30, 2016. A sale transaction by
AMREP Southwest of certain mortgaged land requires the approval of the lender. Otherwise, the lender is required to
release the lien of its mortgage on any land being sold at market price by AMREP Southwest in the ordinary course to
an unrelated party on terms AMREP Southwest believes to be commercially reasonable. The loan may be prepaid at
any time without premium or penalty except that if the prepayment is in connection with the disposition of AMREP
Southwest or substantially all of its assets there is a prepayment premium, initially 5% of the amount prepaid, with the
percentage declining by 1% each year. No payments of principal are required until maturity, except that the following
amounts are required to be applied to the payment of the loan: (a) 25% of the net cash proceeds from any sales of real
property by AMREP Southwest and (b) 25% of any royalty payments received by AMREP Southwest under the oil
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and gas lease described in Note 11 in the footnotes to the financial statements included in this annual report on Form
10-K. No new borrowings are permitted under this loan. At April 30, 2016, AMREP Southwest was in compliance
with the covenants of the loan.

During November 2015, Las Fuentes Village, LLC (“LFV”), a subsidiary of AMREP Southwest, entered into a loan
agreement with U.S. Bank National Association to permit the borrowing from time to time by LFV of a maximum
principal amount of $933,000 for the construction of a 2,200 square foot, single tenant retail building in Rio Rancho,
New Mexico. The construction loan was scheduled to mature on October 31, 2016, bore interest payable monthly on
the outstanding principal amount at 0.5% plus the prime rate, was secured by a mortgage on the real property of
approximately one acre where construction of the building had occurred, contained customary events of default,
representations, warranties and covenants for a loan of this nature and was guaranteed by AMREP Southwest. As of
April 30, 2016, the outstanding principal balance of the loan was $555,000 and the book value of the real property
collateralizing the loan was approximately $609,000. No payments of principal of the construction loan were required
until maturity. At April 30, 2016, LFV was in compliance with the covenants of the loan. In the first quarter of fiscal
year 2017, the Company sold this property and received approximately $1,466,000 after expenses and payment in full
of the outstanding principal balance of the loan of approximately $891,000.

14
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Fulfillment Services

The primary source of funding for working capital requirements of the Company’s Fulfillment Services business is
cash flow from operations. If the Fulfillment Services business needs additional liquidity, the parent of the Fulfillment
Services business may in its discretion make cash advances available.

The Fulfillment Services business relies on a small number of large clients; if it should lose one or more of its largest
clients, or if revenues from its largest clients decline, the liquidity of the Fulfillment Services business could be
adversely affected. The five largest clients in the Fulfillment Services business accounted for 42% of its 2016
revenues.

The Fulfillment Services business operates in a very competitive environment with changes in service providers by
customers not being unusual. The Fulfillment Services business has experienced, and expects to continue to
experience, such customer changes. Based on information received from customers, the Fulfillment Services business
currently expects a limited number of significant customers to change service providers for certain services (a) during
fiscal year 2017 representing in aggregate approximately 15% of the Company’s consolidated 2016 revenues and (b)
during fiscal year 2018 representing in aggregate an additional approximately 4% of the Company’s consolidated 2016
revenues. As expected in a competitive environment, the Fulfillment Services business has been successful in
obtaining new customer contracts. Approximately 10% of the number of customers of the Fulfillment Services
business as of the end of fiscal year 2016 were new customers during fiscal year 2016, but the revenue to be generated
by these new customers during fiscal years 2017 and 2018 is expected to be significantly less than the revenue
expected to be lost from customers changing service providers or those reducing services the Fulfillment Services
business provides them during fiscal years 2017 and 2018.

In June 2009, Palm Coast received $3,000,000 pursuant to an agreement with the State of Florida (the “Award
Agreement”) as part of the incentives made available in connection with the Company’s project, completed in the
second quarter of fiscal year 2011, to consolidate its Fulfillment Services operations at its Palm Coast, Florida
location. The Award Agreement includes certain performance requirements in terms of job retention, job creation and
capital investment which, if not met by Palm Coast, entitle the State of Florida to obtain the return of a portion, or all,
of the $3,000,000. Accordingly, the $3,000,000 has been recorded as a liability in the accompanying balance sheet.
The award monies, if any, to which Palm Coast becomes irrevocably entitled will be amortized into income through a
reduction of depreciation over the life of the assets acquired with those funds. Palm Coast has not met certain of the
performance requirements in the Award Agreement, in large part due to the adverse economic conditions experienced
by the magazine publishing industry since the Award Agreement was executed, and as a result, is expecting to have to
repay up to $2,527,000 of the award to the State of Florida. Palm Coast has had discussions with the State of Florida
regarding the timing of the repayment of the $2,527,000, but the amount and timing of any such repayment have not
been resolved.
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The Fulfillment Services business has eliminated the use of two operating facilities during 2015 and 2016. In April
2015, the Fulfillment Services business ceased using a leased facility in Denver, Colorado comprising approximately
12,000 square feet of space and terminated the lease scheduled to expire in August 2016 with a termination payment
of $134,000. Also in April 2015, the Fulfillment Services business exited a leased facility in Palm Coast, Florida
comprising approximately 42,000 square feet of space and in October 2015 terminated the lease that was scheduled to
expire in April 2016 with a termination payment of $122,000.

Pension Plan

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan for which accumulated benefits were frozen and future service
credits were curtailed as of March 1, 2004. Under generally accepted accounting principles, the Company’s defined
benefit pension plan was underfunded at April 30, 2016 by $12,710,000, with $23,708,000 of assets and $36,418,000
of liabilities. The pension plan liabilities were determined using a weighted average discount interest rate of 3.27% per
year, which is based on the Citigroup yield curve as it corresponds to the projected liability requirements of the
pension plan. As of April 30, 2016, for each 0.25% increase in the weighted average discount interest rate, the pension
plan liabilities are forecasted to decrease by approximately $891,000 and for each 0.25% decrease in the weighted
average discount interest rate, the pension plan liabilities are forecasted to increase by approximately $931,000. As of
April 30, 2016, the effect of every 0.25% change in the investment rate of return on pension plan assets would
increase or decrease the subsequent year’s pension expense by approximately $56,000 and the effect of every 0.25%
change in the weighted average discount interest rate would increase or decrease the subsequent year’s pension
expense by approximately $34,000.
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Due to the closing of certain facilities in 2011 in connection with the consolidation of the Company’s Fulfillment
Services business and the associated work force reduction in 2011, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974, as amended (“ERISA”), and the regulations thereunder, gave the PBGC the right to require the Company to
accelerate the funding of approximately $11,688,000 of accrued pension-related obligations to the Company’s defined
benefit pension plan.  In August 2012, the Company and the PBGC reached an initial agreement with respect to this
funding obligation, and as a result, the Company made a $3,000,000 cash contribution to the pension plan in August
2012, thereby leaving a remaining accelerated funding liability of $8,688,000.

In August 2013, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with the PBGC. In the settlement agreement, the
PBGC agreed to forbear from asserting certain rights to obtain payment of the remaining $8,688,000 accelerated
funding liability granted to it by ERISA, and the Company agreed (a) to pay $3,243,000 of the accelerated funding
liability as a cash contribution to its pension plan, which payment was made in September 2013, and (b) to provide
first lien mortgages on certain real property with an aggregate appraised value of $10,039,000 in favor of the PBGC to
secure the remaining unpaid amount of the accelerated funding liability. The total book value of the real property
subject to the mortgages was approximately $11,822,000 as of April 30, 2016. In addition, the PBGC agreed to credit
$426,000 of contributions made by the Company to the pension plan in excess of the 2012 minimum funding
requirements towards the accelerated funding liability, so that, after this credit and the $3,243,000 payment referred to
above, the remaining accelerated funding liability was $5,019,000.

On an annual basis, the Company is required to provide updated appraisals on each mortgaged property and, if the
appraised value of the mortgaged properties is less than two times the amount of the accelerated funding liability then
outstanding, the Company is required to make a payment to its pension plan in an amount equal to one-half of the
amount of the shortfall. Upon the sale by the Company of any property mortgaged in favor of the PBGC, the
Company is required to deposit in its pension plan 50% of the lesser of (i) the amount equal to the total purchase price
of the mortgaged property minus certain transaction costs or (ii) the appraised value of the mortgaged property. The
mortgages in favor of the PBGC will be discharged following the termination date of the settlement agreement. In
connection with the settlement agreement, the Company made certain representations and warranties and is required
to comply with various covenants, reporting requirements and other requirements, including making all required
minimum funding contributions to its pension plan. Any failure by the Company to comply with its obligations under
the settlement agreement may result in an event of default, which would permit the PBGC to repossess, sell or
foreclose on the properties that have been mortgaged in favor of the PBGC; however, if the Company complies with
the terms of the settlement agreement, including making all future required minimum funding contributions to its
pension plan and any payments required due to any shortfall in the appraised value of real property covered by the
mortgages described above, the Company will not be required to make any further cash payments to its pension plan
with respect to the remaining accelerated funding liability.

The settlement agreement is scheduled to terminate on the earlier of the date the accelerated funding liability has been
paid in full or on August 30, 2018. Effective on the termination date of the settlement agreement, the PBGC will be
deemed to have released and discharged the Company and any other members of its controlled group from any claims
in connection with such members’ liability or obligations with respect to the accelerated funding liability. The
settlement agreement does not address any future events that may accelerate any other accrued pension plan

Edgar Filing: AMREP CORP. - Form 10-K

33



obligations. The Company may become subject to additional acceleration of its remaining accrued obligations to the
pension plan if the Company closes other facilities and further reduces its work force of active pension plan
participants. Any such acceleration could negatively impact the Company’s limited financial resources and could have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition.

Other Financing Activities

In February 2016, a subsidiary of the Company sold to a third party the warehouse leased to the Product Packaging
and Fulfillment Services business and the promissory note to a third party lender related thereto with an outstanding
principal balance of $3,992,000 was paid in full from the proceeds of the sale. The Company recorded a gain on the
sale of $252,000.
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Operating Activities

Receivables from trade customers decreased from $7,549,000 at April 30, 2015 to $7,271,000 at April 30, 2016,
primarily due to lower business volumes of the Fulfillment Services business. There was also a $3,600,000 reduction
of receivables from April 30, 2015 as amounts due under the buyer promissory note and line of credit issued in
connection with the sale of the Newsstand Distribution Services business and the Product Packaging and Fulfillment
Services business were collected in full during 2016. For more detail on the sale of the Newsstand Distribution
Services business and the Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business, refer to Item 1 of Part I of this annual
report on Form 10-K.

Real estate inventory totaled $61,663,000 at April 30, 2016 compared to $66,321,000 at April 30, 2015. Inventory in
AMREP Southwest’s core real estate market of Rio Rancho decreased from $61,438,000 at April 30, 2015 to
$57,017,000 at April 30, 2016, primarily as a result of land sales and also included a pretax, non-cash impairment
charge of $2,506,000 on certain developed and take-back lots (i.e., lots where the buyers defaulted on their obligation
to pay AMREP Southwest and which were then repossessed by AMREP Southwest). The balance of real estate
inventory consisted of properties in Colorado. Investment assets decreased from $15,364,000 at April 30, 2015 to
$10,326,000 at April 30, 2016, primarily as a result of the sale of the Company’s Fairfield, Ohio warehouse.

Property, plant and equipment decreased from $15,763,000 at April 30, 2015 to $11,997,000 at April 30, 2016,
primarily due to a non-cash impairment charge of $3,094,000, as well as depreciation charges, which were offset in
part by $798,000 of capital expenditures. Intangible and other assets decreased from $10,440,000 at April 30, 2015 to
$3,478,000 at April 30, 2016, primarily due to a non-cash impairment charge of $4,806,000, as well as the
amortization of these assets.

Taxes receivable, net was $48,000 at April 30, 2016 compared to taxes payable, net of $653,000 at April 30, 2015,
primarily due to an estimated payment of federal taxes following April 30, 2015. In February 2016, the Company
received a refund of $1,056,000 following the filing of its federal income tax return for 2015. The $48,000 includes
approximately $66,000 for the anticipated recovery of taxes paid after the Company files its federal tax return for
2016, offset in part by state taxes payable of $18,000.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses decreased from $10,284,000 at April 30, 2015 to $8,453,000 at April 30,
2016, primarily due to lower business volumes and the timing of payments to vendors in the Company’s Fulfillment
Services business.
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Notes payable decreased from $18,090,000 at April 30, 2015 to $12,939,000 at April 30, 2016, primarily due to the
satisfaction of a mortgage note payable with the sale of the Company’s Fairfield, Ohio warehouse in February 2016.

Other liabilities and deferred revenue decreased from $4,827,000 at April 30, 2015 to $3,682,000 at April 30, 2016. In
connection with the sale of the Company’s discontinued operations noted above, a subsidiary of the Company retained
its ownership of a warehouse leased to the Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business with a term that
expired in November 2018. At the inception of the lease in November 2008, the subsidiary of the Company recorded
deferred revenue and the Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business recorded an Other asset amount, which
amounts were being amortized over the lease term and, prior to January 31, 2015, were eliminated in consolidation.
As a result of the sale of the Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business, deferred rent revenue was no
longer eliminated in consolidation and is included in Other liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet at April 30,
2015 and totaled $1,042,000. The credit related to the amortization of the deferred rent revenue had been accounted
for as a reduction of general and administrative expenses for real estate operations and corporate in the accompanying
financial statements. In February 2016, the warehouse was sold to a third party and, as a result of the sale, the
Company reduced the deferred rent revenue to zero and recognized a pretax gain of $252,000 during the quarter
ending April 30, 2016.

The unfunded pension liability of the Company’s frozen defined benefit pension plan increased from $11,259,000 at
April 30, 2015 to $12,710,000 at April 30, 2016, due to changes in the discount rate and mortality tables when
determining pension benefit obligations. The Company recorded, net of tax, other comprehensive loss of $268,000
and $1,658,000 in 2016 and 2015, reflecting the change in the unfunded pension liability in each year net of the
related deferred tax and unrecognized prepaid pension amounts.
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During the third quarter of 2016, an oil and gas lease became effective with respect to minerals and mineral rights
owned by a subsidiary of AMREP Southwest in and under approximately 80 surface acres of land in Brighton,
Colorado.  As partial consideration for entering into the lease, the Company received $128,000 during the third
quarter of 2016. The lease will be in force for an initial term of five years and for as long thereafter as oil or gas is
produced and marketed in paying quantities from the property or for additional limited periods of time if the lessee
undertakes certain operations or makes certain de minimis shut-in royalty payments.  The lease does not require the
lessee to drill any oil or gas wells.  The lessee has agreed to pay the Company a royalty on oil and gas produced from
the property of 18.75% of the sales proceeds received by the lessee from the sale of such oil and gas and such royalty
will be charged with 18.75% of any post-production costs associated with such oil and gas.  No drilling has
commenced with respect to this property.

Investing Activities

Capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment for continuing operations were approximately $798,000 and
$1,127,000 in 2016 and 2015, primarily for upgrades related to technology in both years for the Fulfillment Services
business. The Company believes that it has adequate cash and cash flows from operations to provide for anticipated
capital expenditures and land development spending in fiscal year 2017.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In March 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
No. 2016-09, Compensation - Stock Compensation: Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting.
The update simplifies several aspects of accounting for employee share-based payment transactions for both public
and nonpublic entities, including the accounting for income taxes, forfeitures, and statutory tax withholding
requirements, as well as classification in the statement of cash flows. The ASU is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within those annual reporting periods. The
adoption of ASU 2016-09 by the Company is not expected to have a material effect on its consolidated financial
statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. ASU 2016-02 requires that a lessee recognize the
assets and liabilities that arise from operating leases. A lessee should recognize in its balance sheet a liability to make
lease payments (the lease liability) and a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the
lease term. For leases with a term of twelve months or less, a lessee is permitted to make an accounting policy election
by class of underlying asset not to recognize lease assets and lease liabilities. In transition, lessees and lessors are
required to recognize and measure leases at the beginning of the earliest period presented using a modified
retrospective approach. The amendments in the ASU will be effective for the Company for fiscal year 2020 beginning
on May 1, 2019.
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In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. This guidance defines
how companies report revenues from contracts with customers and also requires enhanced disclosures. In July 2015,
the FASB voted to defer the effective date by one year, with early adoption on the original effective date permitted.
The Company will be required to adopt the standard as of May 1, 2018 and early adoption is permitted as of May 1,
2017. The Company has not determined the transition approach that will be utilized or estimated the impact of
adopting the new accounting standard.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information by industry segment is presented in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements included in this
annual report on Form 10-K. Industry segment information is prepared in a manner consistent with the manner in
which financial information is prepared and evaluated by management for making operating decisions. A number of
assumptions and estimates are required to be made in the determination of segment data, including the need to make
certain allocations of common costs and expenses among segments. On an annual basis, management evaluates the
basis upon which costs are allocated, and has periodically made revisions to these methods of allocation. Accordingly,
the determination of “net income (loss)” of each segment as summarized in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements is presented for informational purposes only, and is not necessarily the amount that would be reported if
the segment were an independent company.
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IMPACT OF INFLATION

Operations of the Company can be impacted by inflation. Within the industries in which the Company operates,
inflation can cause increases in the cost of materials, services, interest and labor. Unless such increased costs are
recovered through increased sales prices or improved operating efficiencies, operating margins will decrease. Within
the land development industry, the Company encounters particular risks. A large part of the Company’s real estate
sales are to homebuilders who face their own inflationary concerns that rising housing costs, including interest costs,
may substantially outpace increases in the incomes of potential purchasers and make it difficult for them to purchase a
new home or sell an owned home. If this situation were to exist, the demand for the Company’s land by these
homebuilder customers could decrease. In general, in recent years interest rates have been at historically low levels
and other price increases have been commensurate with the general rate of inflation in the Company’s markets, and as
a result the Company has not found the inflation risk to be a significant problem in any of its businesses.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”) provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements
made by or on behalf of the Company. The Company and its representatives may from time to time make written or
oral statements that are “forward-looking”, including statements contained in this annual report on Form 10-K and other
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, reports to the Company’s shareholders and news releases. All
statements that express expectations, estimates, forecasts or projections are forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the Act. In addition, other written or oral statements, which constitute forward-looking statements, may be
made by or on behalf of the Company. Words such as “expects”, “anticipates”, “intends”, “plans”, “believes”, “seeks”, “estimates”,
“projects”, “forecasts”, “may”, “should”, variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify such
forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks,
uncertainties and contingencies that are difficult to predict. All forward-looking statements speak only as of the date
of this annual report on Form 10-K or, in the case of any document incorporated by reference, the date of that
document. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to the Company or any person
acting on behalf of the Company are qualified by the cautionary statements in this section. Many of the factors that
will determine the Company’s future results are beyond the ability of management to control or predict. Therefore,
actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in or suggested by such
forward-looking statements.

The forward-looking statements contained in this annual report on Form 10-K include, but are not limited to,
statements regarding (i) the Company’s ability to finance its future working capital, land development and capital
expenditure needs, (ii) the Company’s expected liquidity sources, (iii) anticipated future development of the Company’s
real estate holdings, (iv) the development and construction of possible future commercial properties to be marketed to
tenants, (v) the timing of reimbursements under, and the general effectiveness of, the public improvement district over
a portion of the Lomas Encantadas subdivision and a portion of the Enchanted Hills/Commerce Center subdivision,
(vi) the number of planned residential lots in the Company’s subdivisions, (vii) the timing and extent of the Company’s
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required return of incentive monies to the State of Florida, (viii) the expected loss of any material customer contract
and the material adverse effect of any such loss, (ix) the effect of recent accounting pronouncements on the Company,
(x) the anticipated contributions by the Company to the pension plan and the amount of future annual benefit
payments to the pension plan, (xi) the effect of changes on the weighted average discount interest rate on the amount
of pension plan liabilities, (xii) the timing of recognizing unrecognized compensation expense related to shares of
common stock issued under the Equity Plan, (xiii) the timing and amount of recovery of taxes paid after the Company
files its federal tax return for 2016, (xiv) the liability for unrecognized tax benefits not changing in the next twelve
months and (xv) the adequacy of the Company’s facilities. The Company undertakes no obligation to update or
publicly release any revisions to forward-looking statements to reflect events, circumstances or changes in
expectations after the date of such forward-looking statement, or to make any other forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not required.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Internal control
over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of human error
and the circumvention or overriding of controls, material misstatements may not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Accordingly, even internal controls determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with
respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Furthermore, projections of any evaluation of the
effectiveness of internal controls to future periods are subject to the risk that such controls may become inadequate
due to changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of April 30, 2016 based
upon the criteria set forth in a report entitled “Internal Control - Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in 2013. Based on its assessment, management has concluded
that, as of April 30, 2016, internal control over financial reporting was effective.

This annual report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of the Company’s independent registered public
accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to such
attestation pursuant to rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only
management’s report on internal control over financial reporting in this annual report on Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders

AMREP Corporation

Princeton, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of AMREP Corporation and Subsidiaries as of April
30, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), shareholders’
equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of AMREP Corporation and Subsidiaries as of April 30, 2016 and 2015, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

/s/ RSM US LLP

Des Moines, Iowa

July 29, 2016
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AMREP CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

APRIL 30, 2016 AND 2015

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except share amounts)

2016 2015

ASSETS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $14,562 $12,050

RECEIVABLES, net 7,271 11,265

REAL ESTATE INVENTORY 61,663 66,321

INVESTMENT ASSETS, net 10,326 15,364

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net 11,997 15,763

INTANGIBLE AND OTHER ASSETS, net 3,478 10,440

TAXES RECEIVABLE, net 48 -

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES, net 11,283 5,837

ASSETS OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - 1,689
TOTAL ASSETS $120,628 $138,729

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES $8,453 $10,284

NOTES PAYABLE:
Amounts due within one year 555 128
Amounts due beyond one year - 3,959
Amounts due to related party 12,384 14,003

12,939 18,090

TAXES PAYABLE, net - 653
OTHER LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED REVENUE 3,682 4,827
ACCRUED PENSION COST 12,710 11,259
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LIABILITIES OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - 295
TOTAL LIABILITIES 37,784 45,408

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Common stock, $.10 par value; shares authorized - 20,000,000; shares issued – 8,284,704 at
April 30, 2016 and 8,281,704 at April 30, 2015 828 828

Capital contributed in excess of par value 50,553 50,538
Retained earnings 46,779 57,003
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net (11,101 ) (10,833 )
Treasury stock, at cost – 225,250 shares at April 30, 2016 and 2015 (4,215 ) (4,215 )
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 82,844 93,321
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $120,628 $138,729

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an

integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AMREP CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended April 30,
2016 2015

REVENUES:
Fulfillment services $ 34,757 $ 43,684
Real estate land sales 5,697 5,883
Other 1,210 223

41,664 49,790

COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Real estate land sales 4,898 4,329
Operating expenses:
Fulfillment services 31,764 37,265
Real estate selling expenses 181 252
Other 1,527 1,389
General and administrative:
Fulfillment services 3,169 4,359
Real estate operations and corporate 3,793 3,717
Impairment of assets 10,406 2,580
Interest expense 1,361 1,615

57,099 55,506
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes (15,435 ) (5,716 )
Benefit for income taxes (5,211 ) (2,132 )
Loss from continuing operations (10,224 ) (3,584 )

Discontinued operations (Note 2)
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes - 11,408
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations - 10,729
Provision for income taxes - 7,233
Income from discontinued operations - 14,904

Net income (loss) $ (10,224 ) $ 11,320

Loss per share – continuing operations – basic and diluted $ (1.27 ) $ (0.45 )
Earnings per share – discontinued operations – basic and diluted $ - $ 1.88
Earnings (loss) per share, net – basic and diluted $ (1.27 ) $ 1.43

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 8,037 7,919
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The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an

integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AMREP CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(Amounts in thousands)

Year Ended April 30,
2016 2015

Net income (loss) $ (10,224 ) $ 11,320
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Change in pension liability, net of tax ($165 in 2016 and $1,016 in 2015) (268 ) (1,658 )
Other comprehensive loss (268 ) (1,658 )
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ (10,492 ) $ 9,662

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an

integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AMREP CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(Amounts in thousands)

Common Stock

Capital
Contributed
in Excess
of

Retained
Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive

Treasury
Stock,
at

Shares Amount Par Value Earnings Loss Cost Total
Balance, April 30, 2014 7,445 $ 744 $ 46,264 $45,683 $ (9,175 ) $ (4,215 ) $79,301

Issuance of common stock related to
settlement 825 83 4,191 - - - 4,274

Issuance of restricted common stock 12 1 83 - - - 84
Net income - - - 11,320 - - 11,320
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (1,658 ) - (1,658 )
Balance, April 30, 2015 8,282 828 50,538 57,003 (10,833 ) (4,215 ) 93,321

Issuance of restricted common stock 3 - 15 - - - 15
Net loss - - - (10,224) - - (10,224)
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (268 ) - (268 )
Balance, April 30, 2016 8,285 828 $ 50,553 $46,779 $ (11,101 ) $ (4,215 ) $82,844

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an

integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AMREP CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in thousands)

Year Ended April 30,
2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss from continuing operations $ (10,224 ) $ (3,584 )
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,977 3,264
Impairment of assets 10,406 2,580
Non-cash credits and charges:
Provision for doubtful accounts 67 42
Stock-based compensation 68 122
Loss on disposal of assets 21 -
Pension settlement accounting - 431
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables 327 (351 )
Real estate inventory and investment assets 7,079 3,660
Intangible and other assets 688 628
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,831 ) (2,155 )
Taxes receivable and payable (703 ) 662
Other liabilities and deferred revenue (1,145 ) 611
Deferred income taxes (5,281 ) 3,247
Accrued pension costs 1,018 805
Total adjustments 13,691 13,546
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,467 9,962

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures - property, plant and equipment (798 ) (1,127 )
Proceeds from line of credit receivable 2,000 -
Proceeds from note receivable 1,600 -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 2,802 (1,127 )

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from debt financing 555 -
Principal debt payments (5,706 ) (1,455 )
Net transfers from (advances to) discontinued operations 1,394 (2,901 )
Net cash used in financing activities (3,757 ) (4,356 )

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,512 4,479
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 12,050 7,571
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 14,562 $ 12,050
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SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized $ 1,349 $ 1,611
Income taxes paid, net $ 914 $ 194
Non-cash transactions:
Issuance of common stock in settlement $ - $ 4,274

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an

integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AMREP CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING POLICIES:

Organization and principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of AMREP Corporation, an Oklahoma corporation, and its
subsidiaries (individually and collectively, as the context requires, the “Company”). The Company, through its
subsidiaries, is primarily engaged in two business segments: the real estate business operated by AMREP Southwest
Inc. (“AMREP Southwest”) and its subsidiaries and the Fulfillment Services business operated by Palm Coast Data LLC
(“Palm Coast”) and its affiliates. The Company’s foreign sales are insignificant. All significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Refer to Note 2 for subsidiaries of the Company that have
been disposed of during 2015 and are classified as discontinued operations.

The consolidated balance sheets are presented in an unclassified format since the Company has substantial operations
in the real estate industry and its operating cycle is greater than one year. Certain 2015 balances in these financial
statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation with no effect on the net income or loss
or shareholders’ equity.

Fiscal year

The Company’s fiscal year ends on April 30. All references to 2016 and 2015 mean the fiscal years ended April 30,
2016 and 2015, unless the context otherwise indicates.

Revenue recognition

Fulfillment Services - Revenues from Fulfillment Services operations include revenues from subscription, contact
center and other fulfillment services. These revenues include fees from the maintenance of computer files for
customers and other fulfillment activities, including customer telephone support, and graphic arts and lettershop
services, all of which are billed and earned monthly as the services are provided. In accordance with the Financial
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Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 605-45, certain reimbursed postage
costs are accounted for on a net basis.

Real Estate - Land sales are recognized when all elements of ASC 360-20 are met, including when the parties are
bound by the terms of the contract, all consideration (including adequate cash) has been exchanged, title and other
attributes of ownership have been conveyed to the buyer by means of a closing and the Company is not obligated to
perform further significant development of the specific property sold. Profit is recorded either in its entirety or on the
installment method depending upon, among other things, the ability to estimate the collectability of the unpaid sales
price. In the event the buyer defaults on an obligation with respect to real estate inventory which has been sold, the
property may be repossessed (“take-back lots”). When repossessed, take-back lots are taken into inventory at fair market
value less estimated costs to sell. Fair market value is supported by current third party appraisals.

Cost of land sales includes all direct acquisition costs and other costs specifically identified with the property,
including pre-acquisition costs and capitalized real estate taxes and interest, and an allocation of certain common
development costs (such as roads, sewers and amenities) associated with the entire project. Common development
costs include the installation of utilities and roads, and may be based upon estimates of cost to complete. The
allocation of costs is based on the relative sales value of the property before development. Estimates and cost
allocations are reviewed on a regular basis until a project is substantially completed, and are revised and reallocated as
necessary on the basis of current estimates.

The Company periodically develops commercial buildings on property it owns and leases the building to tenants. Base
rental payments from tenants are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Additional
rent related to the reimbursement of real estate taxes, insurance, repairs and maintenance, and other operating
expenses is recognized as revenue in the period the expenses are incurred. The reimbursements are recognized as
earned and presented gross, as the Company is generally the primary obligor and, with respect to purchasing goods
and services from third-party suppliers, has discretion in selecting the supplier and bears the associated credit risk.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments that have an original maturity of ninety days or less and are
readily convertible into cash.

Receivables

Receivables are carried at original invoice or closing statement amounts less estimates made for doubtful accounts.
Management determines the allowances for doubtful accounts by reviewing and identifying troubled accounts and by
using historical experience applied to an aging of accounts. A receivable is considered to be past due if any portion of
the receivable balance is outstanding for more than ninety days. Receivables are written off when deemed
uncollectible. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are recorded when received.

Real estate inventory

The Company accounts for its real estate inventories in accordance with ASC 360-10. The cost basis of the land and
improvements includes all direct acquisition costs including development costs, certain amenities, capitalized interest,
capitalized real estate taxes and other costs. Interest and real estate taxes are not capitalized unless active development
is underway. Land and improvements on land held for future development or sale are stated at accumulated cost and
tested for recoverability as described below under “Impairment of long-lived assets”. Take-back lots (as discussed above
under “Revenue recognition”) are initially recorded at fair market value less estimated costs to sell, establishing a new
cost basis and are subsequently measured at the lower of cost or fair market value less estimated costs to sell.

Real estate inventory is to be evaluated and reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. Provisions for impairment are recorded when
undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the carrying amount of the assets. The
amount of impairment would be equal to the difference between the carrying value of an asset and its fair value.

For real estate projects under development, an estimate of future cash flows on an undiscounted basis is determined
using estimated future expenditures necessary to complete such projects and using management’s best estimates about
sales prices and holding periods. The estimation process involved in determining if assets have been impaired and in
the determination of estimated future cash flows is inherently uncertain because it requires estimates of future
revenues and costs, as well as future events and conditions. If the excess of undiscounted cash flows over the carrying
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value of a project is small, there is a greater risk of future impairment and any resulting impairment charges could be
material. Due to the subjective nature of the estimates and assumptions used in determining future cash flows, actual
results could differ materially from current estimates and the Company may be required to recognize additional
impairment charges in the future.

Investment assets

Investment assets primarily consist of investment land, which represents vacant, undeveloped land not held for
development or sale in the normal course of business, and is stated at the lower of cost or fair market value less
estimated costs to sell.

Property, plant and equipment

Items capitalized as part of property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and
repair and minor renewals are charged to expense as incurred, while those expenditures that improve or extend the
useful life of existing assets are capitalized. Upon the sale or other disposition of assets, their cost and the related
accumulated depreciation or amortization are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
reflected in operations.
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Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment are provided principally by the straight-line method at
various rates calculated to amortize the book values of the respective assets over their estimated useful lives, which
generally are 10 years or less for furniture and fixtures (including equipment) and 25 to 40 years for buildings and
improvements.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company accounts for it long-lived assets, including certain real estate, property, plant and equipment, and
intangible and other assets, in accordance with ASC 360-10. Asset impairment determinations are based upon the
intended use of assets, expected future cash flows and estimates of fair value of assets. Testing of operating asset
groups includes an estimate of future cash flows on an undiscounted basis using estimated revenue streams, operating
margins and administrative expenses. Similar to real estate inventory, the estimation process involved in determining
if assets have been impaired and in the determination of estimated future cash flows is inherently uncertain because it
requires estimates of future revenues and costs, as well as future events and conditions.

Income taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial reporting and tax
bases of assets and liabilities, and are measured by using currently enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those differences are expected to reverse. The Company provides a valuation allowance
against net deferred tax assets unless, based upon the available evidence, it is more likely than not that the deferred tax
assets will be realized.

Earnings (loss) per share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each
year. The restricted shares of common stock (see Note 13) are not included in the computation of basic earnings per
share, as they are considered contingently returnable shares. The restricted shares of common stock are included in
diluted earnings per share if they are dilutive.

Pension plan
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The Company recognizes the over-funded or under-funded status of its defined benefit pension plan as an asset or
liability as of the date of its year-end statement of financial position and changes in that funded status in the year in
which the changes occur through comprehensive income (loss).

Comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity during a period from transactions and other events
from non-owner sources. Total comprehensive income (loss) is the total of net income (loss) and other comprehensive
income (loss) that, for the Company, consists solely of the minimum pension liability net of the related deferred
income tax effect.

Management’s estimates and assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Significant estimates that affect the financial statements include, but are
not limited to, (i) allowances for doubtful accounts; (ii) real estate cost of sales calculations, which are based on land
development budgets and estimates of costs to complete; (iii) cash flow, asset groupings and valuation assumptions in
performing asset impairment tests of long-lived assets (including real estate inventories) and assets held for sale; (iv)
actuarially determined benefit obligation and other pension plan accounting and disclosures; (v) risk assessment of
uncertain tax positions; and (vi) the determination of the recoverability of net deferred tax assets. The Company bases
its significant estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that management believes are
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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Recent accounting pronouncements

In March 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2016-09, Compensation - Stock
Compensation: Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting. The update simplifies several aspects
of accounting for employee share-based payment transactions for both public and nonpublic entities, including the
accounting for income taxes, forfeitures, and statutory tax withholding requirements, as well as classification in the
statement of cash flows. The ASU is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016,
including interim periods within those annual reporting periods. The adoption of ASU 2016-09 by the Company is not
expected to have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. ASU 2016-02 requires that a lessee recognize the
assets and liabilities that arise from operating leases. A lessee should recognize in its balance sheet a liability to make
lease payments (the lease liability) and a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the
lease term. For leases with a term of twelve months or less, a lessee is permitted to make an accounting policy election
by class of underlying asset not to recognize lease assets and lease liabilities. In transition, lessees and lessors are
required to recognize and measure leases at the beginning of the earliest period presented using a modified
retrospective approach. The amendments in the ASU will be effective for the Company for fiscal year 2020 beginning
on May 1, 2019.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. This guidance defines
how companies report revenues from contracts with customers and also requires enhanced disclosures. In July 2015,
the FASB voted to defer the effective date by one year, with early adoption on the original effective date permitted.
The Company will be required to adopt the standard as of May 1, 2018 and early adoption is permitted as of May 1,
2017. The Company has not determined the transition approach that will be utilized or estimated the impact of
adopting the new accounting standard.

(2) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS:

Newsstand Distribution Services Business and Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services Business

Prior to February 9, 2015, the Company was also engaged in the Newsstand Distribution Services business and the
Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business, operated by Kable Media Services, Inc., Kable Distribution
Services, Inc. (“Kable Distribution”), Kable News Company, Inc., Kable News International, Inc., Kable Distribution
Services of Canada, Ltd. and Kable Product Services, Inc. (collectively, the “Company Group”). The Newsstand
Distribution Services business operated a national distribution business that distributed publications, and the Product
Packaging and Fulfillment Services business offered electronic and traditional commerce solutions to customers.

Edgar Filing: AMREP CORP. - Form 10-K

58



On February 9, 2015, American Investment Republic Co. (“ARIC”), a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a stock
purchase agreement (the “Stock Purchase Agreement”) with DFI Holdings, LLC (“Distribution Buyer”) and KPS Holdco,
LLC (“Products Buyer”, and together with Distribution Buyer, the “MD Buyers”), where each MD Buyer was controlled
by Michael P. Duloc. The closing of the transactions contemplated by the Stock Purchase Agreement occurred on
February 9, 2015.

Prior to February 9, 2015, Mr. Duloc was the chief executive officer and president of the Company Group and certain
other subsidiaries of the Company and was a principal executive officer of the Company. In connection with the
closing of the transactions contemplated by the Stock Purchase Agreement, effective on February 9, 2015, Mr. Duloc
was removed as an officer of each direct and indirect subsidiary of the Company and ceased to be a principal
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Duloc is the son-in-law of Nicholas G. Karabots, a significant shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Duloc’s spouse, who is Mr. Karabots’ daughter, is an officer of one of Mr. Karabots’ companies to
which the Company Group provided services and to which the Company’s continuing subscription fulfillment business
provides services.

Pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, Products Buyer acquired, through the purchase of all of the capital stock
of Kable Product Services, Inc., the Company’s Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business. Immediately
following such acquisition, pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, Distribution Buyer acquired, through the
purchase of all of the capital stock of Kable Media Services, Inc. (“KMS”), the Company’s Newsstand Distribution
Services business operated by KMS’s direct and indirect subsidiaries, namely Kable Distribution, Kable News
Company, Inc., Kable News International, Inc. and Kable Distribution Services of Canada, Ltd.
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Consideration for MD Buyers acquiring the Company Group included MD Buyers paying ARIC $2,000,000, which
consisted of $400,000 of cash paid by MD Buyers on February 9, 2015 and $1,600,000 paid by execution by MD
Buyers of a secured promissory note, dated as of February 9, 2015 (the “Buyer Promissory Note”).

As a result of the transaction, other than (i) the elimination of substantially all of the intercompany amounts of the
Company Group due to or from the Company and its direct and indirect subsidiaries (not including the Company
Group) through offset and capital contribution and (ii) certain other limited items identified in the Stock Purchase
Agreement and the agreements entered into in connection with the Stock Purchase Agreement, the Company Group
retained all of its pre-closing assets, liabilities, rights and obligations. At February 9, 2015, the Company Group had
assets of $4,564,000 and liabilities of $15,732,000, which included $11,605,000 of negative working capital with
respect to Kable Distribution. The negative working capital of Kable Distribution represented its net payment
obligation due to publisher clients and other third parties. The Company recognized a pretax gain of $10,479,000 on
its financial statements as a result of the transaction in the fourth quarter of 2015.

The following agreements, each dated as of February 9, 2015, were entered into in connection with the Stock Purchase
Agreement:

·

Buyer Promissory Note. MD Buyers entered into the Buyer Promissory Note, which required MD Buyers to pay
ARIC $1,600,000 in 24 equal monthly instalments, commencing on February 1, 2016, with interest due and payable
monthly commencing on March 1, 2015. Interest accrued at a rate per annum determined on the first business day of
each month equal to three percent plus the “prime rate,” as published in The Wall Street Journal. The Buyer Promissory
Note contained customary events of default and representations, warranties and covenants provided by MD Buyers to
ARIC, and was secured by a pledge of substantially all of the personal property of MD Buyers and the Company
Group, pari passu with other secured obligations owed by MD Buyers and the Company Group to ARIC under the
Stock Purchase Agreement and the agreements entered into in connection with the Stock Purchase Agreement.

·

Line of Credit. ARIC provided the Company Group with a secured revolving line of credit pursuant to a line of credit
promissory note (the “Line of Credit”). The Line of Credit permitted the Company Group to borrow from ARIC up to a
maximum principal amount of $2,000,000 from February 9, 2015 until May 11, 2015, $1,500,000 from May 12, 2015
until August 5, 2016 and $1,000,000 from August 6, 2016 until February 9, 2017, with interest due and payable
monthly commencing on March 1, 2015.

The principal amount permitted to be borrowed under the Line of Credit was subject to the following borrowing base:
(a) from February 9, 2015 until May 11, 2015, (i) 50% of eligible accounts receivable of the Company Group and (ii)
45% of eligible unbilled receivables of Kable Distribution and from May 12, 2015 until February 9, 2017, (i) 50% of
eligible accounts receivable of the Company Group and (ii) 30% of eligible unbilled receivables of Kable Distribution.

Edgar Filing: AMREP CORP. - Form 10-K

60



Amounts outstanding under the Line of Credit accrued interest at a rate per annum as determined on the first business
day of each month equal to three percent plus the “prime rate,” as published in The Wall Street Journal. Amounts
available but not advanced under the Line of Credit accrued “unused” fees at a rate of 1.0% per annum, payable on the
first day of each month. The Line of Credit contained customary events of default and representations, warranties and
covenants provided by the Company Group to ARIC, and was secured by a pledge of substantially all of the personal
property of MD Buyers and the Company Group, pari passu with other secured obligations owed by MD Buyers and
the Company Group to ARIC under the Stock Purchase Agreement and the agreements entered into in connection
with the Stock Purchase Agreement.

·

Security Agreement. MD Buyers, the Company Group and ARIC entered into a security agreement (the “Security
Agreement”) pursuant to which MD Buyers and the Company Group pledged and granted a security interest in
substantially all of their personal property to ARIC in order to secure the obligations of each MD Buyer and each
member of the Company Group, including under the Stock Purchase Agreement, the Line of Credit, the Buyer
Promissory Note and the other agreements entered into in connection with the Stock Purchase Agreement.
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The Company and its remaining direct and indirect subsidiaries retained their obligations under the Company’s defined
benefit pension plan, without any funding acceleration or other changes in any of the obligations thereunder as a result
of the sale of the Company Group. In addition, a subsidiary of the Company retained its ownership of a warehouse
leased to the Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business with a term that expired in November 2018 and
remained subject to a promissory note to a third party lender with a maturity date of February 2018.

In January 2016, ARIC entered into a letter agreement with MD Buyers and the Company Group, which resolved
certain events of default by MD Buyers and the Company Group. Among other things, the letter agreement provided
the following: payment to ARIC of approximately $1,600,000, representing the full amount of principal and interest
outstanding under the Buyer Promissory Note; termination of the Line of Credit (no amount of principal was
outstanding under the Line of Credit as of the termination date); termination of the Security Agreement; and a release
and indemnity in favor of ARIC and its affiliates with respect to the events of default and the resolution thereof.

In February 2016, a subsidiary of the Company sold to a third party the warehouse leased to the Product Packaging
and Fulfillment Services business and the promissory note to a third party lender related thereto with an outstanding
principal balance of $3,992,000 was paid in full from the proceeds of the sale.

The Company’s Newsstand Distribution Services business and Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business
have been classified as discontinued operations in the accompanying financial statements.

Staffing Services Business

Prior to April 10, 2015, the Company was also engaged in the Staffing Services business, operated by Kable Staffing
Resources LLC (“KSR”). The Staffing Services business provided temporary employees to local companies in the
Fairfield, Ohio area. On April 10, 2015, KSR entered into an asset purchase agreement (the “Asset Purchase
Agreement”) with TSJ Staffing, LLC (“Staffing Buyer”), pursuant to which Staffing Buyer acquired, through the
purchase of certain assets of KSR, the Company’s Staffing Services business. The closing of the transactions
contemplated by the Asset Purchase Agreement occurred on April 10, 2015.

Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement, Staffing Buyer (1) acquired from KSR all of KSR’s assets, other than cash,
accounts receivables and certain other assets of KSR as of April 10, 2015, and (2) assumed all of KSR’s obligations
and liabilities relating to or arising out of KSR’s office lease and KSR’s post-closing obligations and liabilities with
respect to the purchased assets. The Asset Purchase Agreement provided standard representations, warranties,
covenants and indemnities.
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Staffing Buyer paid KSR $250,000, all of which was paid in cash on April 10, 2015. In connection with the
transaction, KSR retained its cash, accounts receivables, accounts payable and accrued expenses as of April 10, 2015.
As of April 10, 2015, KSR had approximately $1,482,000 of cash, $1,609,000 of accounts receivable and $315,000 of
accounts payable and accrued expenses. The Company recognized a pretax gain of $250,000 on its financial
statements as a result of the transaction in the fourth quarter of 2015. The Company’s Staffing Services business has
been classified as a discontinued operation in the accompanying financial statements.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the carrying amounts of major classes of assets and liabilities of the
discontinued operations noted above to the assets and liabilities classified as discontinued operations in the
accompanying balance sheets (in thousands):
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April 30, 2015
Carrying amounts of major classes of assets included as part of discontinued operations:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,241
Receivables, net 431
Intangible and other assets, net 17
Total assets classified as discontinued operations in the accompanying balance sheets $ 1,689
Carrying amounts of major classes of liabilities included as part of discontinued operations:
Accounts payable, net and accrued expenses $ 150
Deferred and income taxes payable 145
Total liabilities classified as discontinued operations in the accompanying balance sheets $ 295

The following table provides a reconciliation of the carrying amounts of components of pretax income or loss of the
discontinued operations to the amounts reported in the accompanying statements of operations (in thousands):

April 30, 2015
Components of pretax income (loss) from discontinued operations:
Revenues $ 17,700
Operating expenses (15,810 )
General and administrative expenses (1,605 )
Interest expense (32 )
Gain from settlement (Note 17) 11,155
Gain on discontinued operations 10,729
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes 22,137
Provision for income taxes 7,233
Net income from discontinued operations $ 14,904

Operating expenses for discontinued operations in 2015 includes a reduction in the reserve for bad debts of
approximately $1,500,000 for a previously recorded charge to operations.

The following table provides the total operating and investing cash flows of the discontinued operations for the
periods in which the results of operations of the discontinued operations are presented in the accompanying statements
of operations (in thousands):

April 30, 2015
Cash flows from discontinued operating activities:
Income from discontinued operations $ 14,904
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Non-cash gain on settlement (11,155 )
Non-cash gain on discontinued operations (10,479 )
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Depreciation and amortization 311
Non-cash credits and charges:
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,484 )
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables 11,810
Intangible and other assets (39 )
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (10,127 )
Other assets and liabilities (675 )
Total adjustments (21,838 )
Net cash used in operating activities $ (6,934 )
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures - property, plant and equipment $ (25 )
Net cash used in investing activities $ (25 )
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(3) RECEIVABLES:

Receivables consist of:

April 30,
2016 2015
(in thousands)

Fulfillment Services $7,357 $7,993
Buyer Promissory Note (refer to Note 2) - 1,600
Line of Credit receivable (refer to Note 2) - 2,000
Real estate operations and corporate 348 116

7,705 11,709
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (434 ) (444 )

$7,271 $11,265

The Company extends credit to various companies in its businesses that may be affected by changes in economic or
other external conditions. Financial instruments that may potentially subject the Company to a significant
concentration of credit risk primarily consist of trade accounts receivable from publishers in the magazine industry. As
industry practices allow, the Company’s policy is to manage its exposure to credit risk through credit approvals and
limits and, on occasion (particularly in connection with real estate sales), the taking of collateral. The Company also
provides an allowance for doubtful accounts for potential losses based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of
specific customers, historical trends and other financial and non-financial information.

In connection with the Stock Purchase Agreement discussed in Note 2 above, MD Buyers entered into the Buyer
Promissory Note, which required MD Buyers to pay ARIC $1,600,000. In addition, ARIC provided the Company
Group with the Line of Credit in connection with the Stock Purchase Agreement. As discussed in Note 2 above, in
January 2016, the Buyer Promissory Note was paid in full and the Line of Credit was terminated.

During 2016, revenues from one major customer of the Company’s Fulfillment Services business totaled $5,748,000 or
13.8% of total revenues for the Company. As of April 30, 2016, the Company’s Fulfillment Services business had
$931,000 of outstanding accounts receivable from this customer, which were paid in full by June 2016. This major
customer has given the Company’s Fulfillment Services business notice that a significant portion of its business will
not be retained during fiscal year 2017 and beyond.

(4) REAL ESTATE INVENTORY:
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Real estate inventory consists of land and improvements held for sale or development. Accumulated capitalized
interest costs included in real estate inventory at April 30, 2016 and 2015 totaled $3,956,000 and $3,957,000. There
were no interest costs capitalized during 2016 and 2015. Accumulated capitalized real estate taxes included in real
estate inventory at April 30, 2016 and 2015 totaled $1,741,000 and $1,746,000. There were no real estate taxes
capitalized during 2016 and 2015. Previously capitalized interest costs and real estate taxes charged to real estate cost
of sales were $6,000 and $15,000 during 2016 and 2015.

A substantial majority of the Company’s real estate assets are located in or adjacent to Rio Rancho, New Mexico. As
of April 30, 2016, the Company had approximately 210 developed lots available for sale in Rio Rancho. The
development of additional lots for sale in Rio Rancho will require significant additional financing or other sources of
funding, which may not be available. Development activities performed in connection with real estate sales include
obtaining necessary governmental approvals, acquiring access to water supplies, installing utilities and necessary
storm drains and building or improving roads. As a result of this geographic concentration, the Company has been and
will be affected by changes in economic conditions in that region.
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(5) INVESTMENT ASSETS:

Investment assets consist of:

April 30,
2016 2015
(in thousands)

Land held for long-term investment $9,717 $9,733

Warehouse facility - 6,572
Other 609 -
Less accumulated depreciation - (941 )

- 5,631
$10,326 $15,364

Land held for long-term investment represents property located in areas that are not planned to be developed in the
near term and thus has not been offered for sale. As of April 30, 2016, the Company held approximately 12,000 acres
of land in New Mexico classified as land held for long-term investment.

In connection with the Stock Purchase Agreement discussed in Note 2 above, a subsidiary of the Company retained its
ownership of a warehouse leased to the Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business with a term that expired
in November 2018 and remained subject to a promissory note to a third party lender with a maturity date of February
2018. In February 2016, the subsidiary of the Company sold to a third party the warehouse leased to the Product
Packaging and Fulfillment Services business. Depreciation associated with the warehouse of $109,000 and $145,000
was charged to operations in 2016 and 2015.

Other includes an approximately 2,200 square foot, single tenant retail building on property owned by the AMREP
Southwest in Rio Rancho, New Mexico. In the first quarter of fiscal year 2017, the Company sold this property (see
Note 9).

(6) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:

Property, plant and equipment consist of:
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April 30,
2016 2015
(in thousands)

Land, buildings and improvements $15,864 $20,000
Furniture and equipment 19,140 19,098

35,004 39,098
Less accumulated depreciation (23,007) (23,335)

$11,997 $15,763

As a result of the long-lived asset impairment test performed as of April 30, 2016 (see Note 16) , the Company
recorded a non-cash, pre-tax impairment charge related to property, plant and equipment of its Fulfillment Services
business that totaled $3,094,000. The carrying amount of (i) land was reduced by $2,848,000, (ii) buildings was
reduced by $122,000 and (iii) furniture and equipment was reduced by $124,000.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment charged to operations was $1,561,000 and $1,811,000 in 2016 and
2015.
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(7) INTANGIBLE AND OTHER ASSETS:

Intangible and other assets consist of:

April 30, 2016 April 30, 2015
(in thousands)

Cost Accumulated
AmortizationCost Accumulated

Amortization

Customer contracts and relationships $ 7 $     - $16,986 $ 10,757
Prepaid expenses 2,358 - 2,520 -
Deferred order entry costs 845 - 961 -
Other 268 - 730 -

$ 3,478 $ - $21,197 $ 10,757

Customer contracts and relationships were being amortized on a straight line basis over twelve years. As a result of
the long-lived asset impairment test performed as of April 30, 2016 (see Note 16), the Company recorded a non-cash,
pre-tax impairment charge related to the customer contracts and relationships asset of its Fulfillment Services business
that totaled $4,806,000. As such, the new cost basis for the customer contracts and relationships asset is $7,000 as of
April 30, 2016.

Deferred order entry costs represent costs incurred in connection with the data entry of customer subscription
information to database files and are charged directly to operations generally over a twelve month period.

Amortization related to intangible and other assets was $1,416,000 and $1,453,000 in 2016 and 2015. Amortization of
intangible and other assets for each of the next five fiscal years is estimated to be as follows: 2017 - $7,000; 2018 - $0;
2019 - $0; 2020 - $0 and 2021 - $0.

(8) ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of:

April 30,
2016 2015
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(in thousands)

Fulfillment Services $6,712 $8,910
Real estate operations and corporate 1,741 1,374

$8,453 $10,284

The April 30, 2016 accounts payable and accrued expenses total includes customer postage deposits of $3,947,000,
accrued expenses of $1,998,000, trade payables of $837,000 and other of $1,671,000. The April 30, 2015 accounts
payable and accrued expenses total includes customer postage deposits of $4,832,000, accrued expenses of
$1,142,000, trade payables of $1,641,000 and other of $2,669,000.
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(9) NOTES PAYABLE:

Notes payable consist of:

April 30,
2016 2015
(in thousands)

Credit facilities:
Real estate operations – due to related party $12,384 $14,003
Real estate operations - other 555 -
Other notes payable - 4,087

$12,939 $18,090

Fiscal year maturities of principal on notes outstanding at April 30, 2016 were as follows: 2017 - $555,000; 2018 -
$12,384,000; and none thereafter.

Real Estate Loan

AMREP Southwest has a loan from a company owned by Nicholas G. Karabots, a significant shareholder of the
Company and in which another director of the Company has a 20% participation. The loan had an outstanding
principal amount of $12,384,000 at April 30, 2016 and of $7,983,000 at July 15, 2016, is scheduled to mature on
December 1, 2017, bears interest payable monthly at 8.5% per annum, is secured by a mortgage on certain real
property of AMREP Southwest in Rio Rancho and by a pledge of the stock of its subsidiary, Outer Rim Investments,
Inc., which owns approximately 12,000 acres, for the most part scattered lots, in Sandoval County, New Mexico and
which are not currently being offered for sale, requires that a cash reserve of at least $500,000 be maintained with the
lender to fund interest payments and is subject to a number of restrictive covenants including a requirement that
AMREP Southwest maintain a minimum tangible net worth and a restriction on AMREP Southwest making
distributions and other payments to its parent company beyond a stated management fee. The total book value of the
real property collateralizing the loan was approximately $59,361,000 as of April 30, 2016. A sale transaction by
AMREP Southwest of certain mortgaged land requires the approval of the lender. Otherwise, the lender is required to
release the lien of its mortgage on any land being sold at market price by AMREP Southwest in the ordinary course to
an unrelated party on terms AMREP Southwest believes to be commercially reasonable. The loan may be prepaid at
any time without premium or penalty except that if the prepayment is in connection with the disposition of AMREP
Southwest or substantially all of its assets there is a prepayment premium, initially 5% of the amount prepaid, with the
percentage declining by 1% each year. No payments of principal are required until maturity, except that 25% of the
net proceeds, as defined, from any sales of real property by AMREP Southwest are required to be applied to the
payment of the loan. No new borrowings are permitted under this loan. Interest expense related to this loan totaled
approximately $1,144,000 and $1,258,000 for 2016 and 2015. At April 30, 2016, AMREP Southwest was in
compliance with the covenants of the loan.
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US Bank Facility

During November 2015, Las Fuentes Village, LLC (“LFV”), a subsidiary of AMREP Southwest, entered into a loan
agreement with U.S. Bank National Association to permit the borrowing from time to time by LFV of a maximum
principal amount of $933,000 for the construction of a 2,200 square foot, single tenant retail building in Rio Rancho,
New Mexico. The construction loan was scheduled to mature on October 31, 2016, bore interest payable monthly on
the outstanding principal amount at 0.5% plus the prime rate, was secured by a mortgage on the real property of
approximately one acre where construction of the building had occurred, contained customary events of default,
representations, warranties and covenants for a loan of this nature and was guaranteed by AMREP Southwest. As of
April 30, 2016, the outstanding principal balance of the loan was $555,000 and the book value of the real property
collateralizing the loan was approximately $609,000. No payments of principal of the construction loan were required
until maturity. Interest expense related to this loan totaled approximately $3,000 for 2016 and was capitalized as part
of the project cost. At April 30, 2016, LFV was in compliance with the covenants of the loan. In the first quarter of
fiscal year 2017, the Company sold this property and received approximately $1,466,000 after expenses and payment
in full of the outstanding principal balance of the loan of approximately $891,000.
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Other Notes Payable

In connection with the Stock Purchase Agreement discussed in Note 2 above, a subsidiary of the Company retained its
ownership of a warehouse leased to the Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business with a term that expired
in November 2018 and remained subject to a promissory note to a third party lender with a maturity date of February
2018. Other notes payable at April 30, 2015 consisted of this promissory note which had an outstanding principal
balance of $4,087,000 and an interest rate of 6.35%. In February 2016, the subsidiary of the Company sold to a third
party the warehouse leased to the Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business and the promissory note to a
third party lender related thereto with an outstanding principal balance of $3,992,000 was paid in full from the
proceeds of the sale.

PNC Credit Facility

The Company’s Fulfillment Services business had a revolving credit and security agreement with PNC Bank, N.A.,
which expired by its terms on August 12, 2015. There were no borrowings under this agreement during 2016.

(10) OTHER LIABILITIES:

In June 2009, Palm Coast received $3,000,000 pursuant to an agreement with the State of Florida (the “Award
Agreement”) as part of the incentives made available in connection with the Company’s project, completed in the
second quarter of fiscal year 2011, to consolidate its Fulfillment Services operations at its Palm Coast, Florida
location. The Award Agreement includes certain performance requirements in terms of job retention, job creation and
capital investment which, if not met by Palm Coast, entitle the State of Florida to obtain the return of a portion, or all,
of the $3,000,000. Accordingly, the $3,000,000 has been recorded as a liability in the accompanying balance sheet.
The award monies, if any, to which Palm Coast becomes irrevocably entitled will be amortized into income through a
reduction of depreciation over the life of the assets acquired with those funds. Palm Coast has not met certain of the
performance requirements in the Award Agreement, in large part due to the adverse economic conditions experienced
by the magazine publishing industry since the Award Agreement was executed, and as a result, is expecting to have to
repay up to $2,527,000 of the award to the State of Florida. Palm Coast has had discussions with the State of Florida
regarding the timing of the repayment of the $2,527,000, but the amount and timing of any such repayment have not
been resolved.

(11) DEFERRED REVENUE:

Edgar Filing: AMREP CORP. - Form 10-K

74



During the second quarter of 2015, AMREP Southwest and one of its subsidiaries (collectively, “ASW”) entered into an
Oil and Gas Lease and the Addendum thereto (collectively, the “Lease”) with Thrust Energy, Inc. and Cebolla Roja,
LLC (collectively, the “Lessee”). Pursuant to the Lease, ASW leased to Lessee all minerals and mineral rights owned by
ASW or for which ASW has executive rights in and under approximately 55,000 surface acres of land in Sandoval
County, New Mexico (the “Leased Premises”) for the purpose of exploring for, developing, producing and marketing oil
and gas. As partial consideration for entering into the Lease, the Lessee paid approximately $1,010,000 to ASW. The
Lease will be in force for an initial term of four years and for as long thereafter as oil or gas is produced and marketed
in paying quantities from the Leased Premises or for additional limited periods of time if Lessee undertakes certain
operations or makes certain de minimis shut-in royalty payments. In addition, Lessee may extend the initial term of
the Lease for an additional four years by paying ASW another payment of approximately $1,010,000. The Lease does
not require Lessee to drill any oil or gas wells.

Lessee has agreed to pay ASW a royalty on oil and gas produced from the Leased Premises of 1/7th of the gross
proceeds received by Lessee from the sale of such oil and gas to an unaffiliated third party of Lessee or 1/7th of the
market value of the oil and gas if sold to an affiliate of Lessee. ASW’s royalty will be charged with 1/7th of any
expenses to place the oil and gas, if any, in marketable condition after it is brought to the surface. Amounts payable
under the Lease will not be reduced by any payments made to other holders of mineral rights or other production
royalty payment interests in the Leased Premises, other than payments pursuant to rights granted by ASW in deeds
transferring portions of the Leased Premises to third parties, primarily in the 1960s and 1970s. ASW and Lessee may
assign, in whole or in part, their interests in the Lease. The oil and gas from ASW’s mineral rights will not be pooled or
unitized with any other oil and gas except as required by law. Lessee has assumed all risks and liabilities in connection
with Lessee’s activities under the Lease and agreed to indemnify ASW with respect thereto. No drilling has
commenced with respect to this property.
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In addition, in September 2014, AMREP Southwest entered into a Consent Agreement (the “Consent Agreement”) with
the mortgage holder on certain portions of the Leased Premises, pursuant to which the mortgage holder provided its
consent to AMREP Southwest entering into the Lease and agreed to enter into a subordination, non-disturbance and
attornment agreement with Lessee. Pursuant to the Consent Agreement, AMREP Southwest agreed to pay the
mortgage holder (a) 25% of any royalty payments received by AMREP Southwest under the Lease with respect to oil
and gas produced from the Leased Premises, which will be credited against any outstanding loan amounts due to the
mortgage holder from AMREP Southwest, and such payments will cease upon payment in full of such outstanding
loan amounts and (b) a separate consent fee of $100,000, which will not be credited against the outstanding loan
amounts due to the mortgage holder from AMREP Southwest.

Revenue from this transaction is being recorded over the lease term and approximately $228,000 and $152,000 was
recognized during 2016 and 2015, which is included in Other revenues in the accompanying financial statements. At
April 30, 2016, there remained $531,000 of deferred revenue.

In connection with the Stock Purchase Agreement discussed in Note 2 above, a subsidiary of the Company retained its
ownership of a warehouse leased to the Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business with a term that expired
in November 2018. At the inception of the lease in November 2008, the subsidiary of the Company recorded deferred
revenue and the Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business recorded an Other asset amount, which amounts
were being amortized over the lease term and, prior to January 31, 2015, were eliminated in consolidation. As a result
of the sale of the Product Packaging and Fulfillment Services business, deferred rent revenue was no longer
eliminated in consolidation and is included in Other liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet at April 30, 2015
and totaled $1,042,000. The credit related to the amortization of the deferred rent revenue had been accounted for as a
reduction of general and administrative expenses for real estate operations and corporate in the accompanying
financial statements and totaled $87,000 and $115,000 for 2016 and 2015. In February 2016, the warehouse was sold
to a third party and, as a result of the sale, the Company reduced the deferred rent revenue to zero and recognized a
pretax gain of $252,000 during its fiscal quarter ending April 30, 2016.

(12) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:

The FASB’s accounting guidance defines fair value and establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That
framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The FASB’s
guidance classifies the inputs to measure fair value into the following hierarchy:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.
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Level
2

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in inactive markets; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and
inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other
means. If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level
3

Inputs for the asset or liability are unobservable and reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Fair value on a non-recurring basis

Certain assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis; that is the asset or liability is not
measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but is subject to fair value adjustment in certain circumstances (for
example, when there is evidence of impairment). The following presents assets by balance sheet caption and by the
level within the fair value hierarchy (as described above) as of April 30, 2016 and 2015, for which a non-recurring
change in fair value has been recorded during the years then ended (in thousands):
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Impairment
Loss
Recorded

2016:

Real estate inventory $ - $ - $21,251 $ 2,506
Property, plant and equipment $ - $ - $9,302 $ 3,094
Intangible and other assets $ - $ - $7 $ 4,806

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Impairment
Loss
Recorded

2015:

Real estate inventory $ - $ - $ 2,048 $ 1,504
Investment assets $ - $ - $ 1,439 $ 305
Property, plant and equipment $ - $ - $ - $ 771

During 2016 and 2015, certain real estate inventory and investment assets were adjusted to their fair values, less
estimated costs to sell, resulting in pretax, non-cash impairment charges of $2,506,000 and $1,809,000. In addition,
the Fulfillment Services business recorded pretax, non-cash impairment charges of $7,900,000 in 2016 as a result of a
review of the recoverability of long-lived assets and $771,000 in 2015 due to the discontinuance of the development
of certain software. The impairment charges were included in results of operations for each period. For additional
detail on the impairment charges, valuation techniques and reasons for the measurements, see Note 16.

The Financial Instruments Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification requires disclosure of fair value
information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance sheet, for which it is practicable to
estimate that value. The Topic excludes all nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements. Fair value is
determined under the hierarchy discussed above. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not
represent the underlying value of the Company. The following methods and assumptions are used in estimating fair
value disclosure for financial instruments: the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
trade payables approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these financial instruments; and other
receivables or debt that bear variable interest rates indexed to prime or LIBOR also approximates fair value as it
re-prices when market interest rates change. These financial assets and liabilities are categorized as Level 1 within the
fair value hierarchy described above.

The Company did not have any long-term, fixed-rate mortgage receivables at April 30, 2016 and 2015. The estimated
fair value of the Company’s long-term, fixed-rate notes payable was $11,102,000 and $16,365,000 versus carrying
amounts of $12,384,000 and $18,090,000 at April 30, 2016 and 2015. These financial assets and liabilities are
categorized as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy described above.
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(13) BENEFIT PLANS:

Pension plan

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan for which accumulated benefits were frozen and future service
credits were curtailed as of March 1, 2004. Due to the closing of certain facilities in 2011 in connection with the
consolidation of the Company’s Fulfillment Services business and the associated work force reduction in 2011, the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”), and the regulations thereunder, gave the
Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (the “PBGC”) the right to require the Company to accelerate the funding of
approximately $11,688,000 of accrued pension-related obligations to the Company’s defined benefit pension plan.  In
August 2012, the Company and the PBGC reached an initial agreement with respect to this funding obligation, and as
a result, the Company made a $3,000,000 cash contribution to the pension plan on August 16, 2012, thereby leaving a
remaining accelerated funding liability of $8,688,000.
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On August 30, 2013, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with the PBGC. In the settlement agreement,
the PBGC agreed to forbear from asserting certain rights to obtain payment of the remaining $8,688,000 accelerated
funding liability granted to it by ERISA, and the Company agreed (a) to pay $3,243,000 of the accelerated funding
liability as a cash contribution to its pension plan, which payment was made on September 4, 2013, and (b) to provide
first lien mortgages on certain real property with an aggregate appraised value of $10,039,000 in favor of the PBGC to
secure the remaining unpaid amount of the accelerated funding liability. The total book value of the real property
subject to the mortgages was approximately $11,822,000 as of April 30, 2016. In addition, the PBGC agreed to credit
$426,000 of contributions made by the Company to the pension plan in excess of the 2012 minimum funding
requirements towards the accelerated funding liability, so that, after this credit and the $3,243,000 payment referred to
above, the remaining accelerated funding liability was $5,019,000.

On an annual basis, the Company is required to provide updated appraisals on each mortgaged property and, if the
appraised value of the mortgaged properties is less than two times the amount of the accelerated funding liability then
outstanding, the Company is required to make a payment to its pension plan in an amount equal to one-half of the
amount of the shortfall. Upon the sale by the Company of any property mortgaged in favor of the PBGC, the
Company is required to deposit in its pension plan 50% of the lesser of (i) the amount equal to the total purchase price
of the mortgaged property minus certain transaction costs or (ii) the appraised value of the mortgaged property. The
mortgages in favor of the PBGC will be discharged following the termination date of the settlement agreement. In
connection with the settlement agreement, the Company made certain representations and warranties and is required
to comply with various covenants, reporting requirements and other requirements, including making all required
minimum funding contributions to its pension plan. Any failure by the Company to comply with its obligations under
the settlement agreement may result in an event of default, which would permit the PBGC to repossess, sell or
foreclose on the properties that have been mortgaged in favor of the PBGC; however, if the Company complies with
the terms of the settlement agreement, including making all future required minimum funding contributions to its
pension plan and any payments required due to any shortfall in the appraised value of real property covered by the
mortgages described above, the Company will not be required to make any further cash payments to its pension plan
with respect to the remaining accelerated funding liability.

The settlement agreement is scheduled to terminate on the earlier of the date the accelerated funding liability has been
paid in full or on August 30, 2018. Effective on the termination date of the settlement agreement, the PBGC will be
deemed to have released and discharged the Company and any other members of its controlled group from any claims
in connection with such members’ liability or obligations with respect to the accelerated funding liability. The
settlement agreement does not address any future events that may accelerate any other accrued pension plan
obligations. The Company may become subject to additional acceleration of its remaining accrued obligations to the
pension plan if the Company closes other facilities and further reduces its work force of active pension plan
participants. Any such acceleration could negatively impact the Company’s limited financial resources and could have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition.

Net periodic pension cost for 2016 and 2015 was comprised of the following components (in thousands):

Edgar Filing: AMREP CORP. - Form 10-K

80



Year Ended April 30,
2016 2015

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation $ 1,284 $ 1,370
Expected return on assets (2,051 ) (2,230 )
Plan expenses 251 247
Recognized net actuarial loss 1,534 1,257
Settlement loss - 1,067
Total cost recognized in pretax income 1,018 1,711
Cost recognized in pretax other comprehensive income 434 2,674
Net periodic pension cost $ 1,452 $ 4,385
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The defined benefit pension plan was amended in November 2014 to provide for a window for lump sum
distributions. As a result of the amendment and the subsequent election by plan participants, the defined benefit
pension plan made settlement payments that totaled $2,317,000 and this amount is included in benefits paid in the
tables below. This lump sum window required settlement accounting treatment under ASC 715-30 and increased
pension costs by approximately $1,067,000.

The estimated net loss, transition obligation and prior service cost for the pension plan that will be amortized from
accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic pension cost over the next fiscal year are $1,603,000, $0
and $0. Assumptions used in determining net periodic pension cost and the benefit obligation were:

Year Ended April 30,
2016 2015

Discount rate used to determine net periodic pension cost 3.48 % 3.90 %
Discount rate used to determine pension benefit obligation 3.27 % 3.48 %
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 8.00 % 8.00 %

The following table sets forth changes in the pension plan’s benefit obligation and assets, and summarizes components
of amounts recognized in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet (in thousands):

April 30,
2016 2015

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $38,303 $36,469
Interest cost 1,284 1,370
Actuarial (gain) loss (750 ) 5,098
Benefits paid (2,419 ) (4,634 )
Benefit obligation at end of year $36,418 $38,303

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $27,044 $29,120
Company contributions - 475
Actual return on plan assets (620 ) 2,334
Benefits paid (2,419 ) (4,634 )
Plan expenses (297 ) (251 )
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $23,708 $27,044

Underfunded status: $(12,710) $(11,259)

Recognition of underfunded status:
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Accrued pension cost $(12,710) $(11,259)

The funded status of the pension plan is equal to the net liability recognized in the consolidated balance sheet. The
following table summarizes the amounts recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss, which have not yet been
recognized as a component of net periodic pension costs (in thousands):

Year Ended April 30,
2016 2015

Pretax accumulated comprehensive loss $ 18,061 $ 17,627
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The following table summarizes the changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss related to the pension plan for
the years ended April 30, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):

Pension Benefits
Pretax Net of Tax

Accumulated comprehensive loss, May 1, 2014 $14,953 $ 9,175
Net actuarial gain 4,998 3,099
Recognition of settlement loss (1,067 ) (662 )
Amortization of net loss (1,257 ) (779 )
Accumulated comprehensive loss, April 30, 2015 17,627 10,833
Net actuarial loss 1,968 1,220
Amortization of net loss (1,534 ) (952 )
Accumulated comprehensive loss, April 30, 2016 $18,061 $ 11,101

The Company recorded, net of tax, other comprehensive loss of $268,000 and $1,658,000 in 2016 and 2015 to account
for the net effect of changes to the unfunded portion of pension liability.

The average asset allocation for the pension plan by asset category was as follows:

April 30,
2016 2015

Equity securities 67 % 69 %
Fixed income securities 28 29
Other (principally cash and cash equivalents) 5 2
Total 100% 100 %

The investment mix between equity securities and fixed income securities is based upon seeking to achieve a desired
return by balancing more volatile equity securities and less volatile fixed income securities. Pension plan assets are
invested in portfolios of diversified public-market equity securities and fixed income securities. The pension plan
holds no securities of the Company. Investment allocations are made across a range of markets, industry sectors,
market capitalization sizes and, in the case of fixed income securities, maturities and credit quality. The Company has
established long-term target allocations of approximately 50-80% for equity securities, 20-50% for fixed income
securities and 0-30% for other.

The expected return on assets for the pension plan is based on management’s expectation of long-term average rates of
return to be achieved by the underlying investment portfolios. In establishing this assumption, management considers
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historical and expected returns for the asset classes in which the pension plan is invested, as well as current economic
and market conditions. The Company is currently using an 8.0% assumed rate of return for purposes of the expected
return rate on assets for the development of net periodic pension costs for the pension plan.

The Company funds the pension plan in compliance with IRS funding requirements. The Company’s contributions to
the pension plan totaled $0 and $475,000 in 2016 and 2015. The Company is not required and does not expect to make
contributions to the pension plan during fiscal year 2017.

The amount of future annual benefit payments is expected to be between $2,488,000 and $2,745,000 in fiscal years
2017 through 2021, and an aggregate of approximately $11,333,000 is expected to be paid in the fiscal five-year
period 2022 through 2026.

The Company has adopted the disclosure requirements in ASC 715, which requires additional fair value disclosures
consistent with those required by ASC 820. The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for
pension plan assets measured at fair value: Common stock – valued at the closing price reported on a listed stock
exchange; Corporate bonds, debentures and government agency securities – valued using pricing models, quoted prices
of securities with similar characteristics or discounted cash flow; and U.S. Treasury securities – valued at the closing
price reported in the active market in which the security is traded.
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The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value
or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Company believes its valuation methods are appropriate and
consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair
value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the pension plan’s assets at fair value as of April
30, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):

2016:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash and cash equivalents $1,171 $1,171 $ - $    -
Investments at fair value:
Equity securities 15,878 15,878 - -
Corporate bonds and debentures 6,663 - 6,663 -
Total assets at fair value $23,712 $17,049 $ 6,663 $ -

2015:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash and cash equivalents $675 $675 $ - $    -
Investments at fair value:
Equity securities 18,634 18,634 - -
Corporate bonds and debentures 7,735 - 7,735 -
Total assets at fair value $27,044 $19,309 $ 7,735 $ -

Savings and salary deferral plans

The Company has a Savings and Salary Deferral Plan, commonly referred to as a 401(k) plan, in which participating
employees contribute salary deductions. The Company may make discretionary matching contributions to the 401(k)
plan, subject to the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors. The Company did not provide matching
contributions to the 401(k) plan in 2016 and 2015.

Equity compensation plan
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In 2006, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted and the shareholders approved the AMREP Corporation
2006 Equity Compensation Plan (the “Equity Plan”) that provides for the issuance of up to 400,000 shares of common
stock of the Company to employees of the Company and its subsidiaries and non-employee members of the Board of
Directors of the Company pursuant to incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights,
stock awards, stock units and other stock-based awards. As of April 30, 2016, 39,000 shares were issued and
outstanding under the Equity Plan, leaving 361,000 shares available for future issuance. The Equity Plan is
administered by the Board of Directors and its Compensation and Human Resources Committee.

Shares of restricted common stock that are issued under the Equity Plan (“restricted shares”) are considered to be issued
and outstanding as of the grant date and have the same dividend and voting rights as other common stock.
Compensation expense related to the restricted shares is recognized over the vesting period of each grant based on the
fair value of the shares as of the date of grant. The fair value of each grant of restricted shares is determined based on
the trading price of the Company’s common stock on the date of such grant, and this amount will be charged to
expense over the vesting term of the grant.
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A summary of the 2015 and 2016 restricted share award activity presented below represents the maximum number of
shares that could be vested:

Restricted time-based share awards Number of
Shares

Weighted Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Non-vested at April 30, 2014 24,000 $ 6.96
Granted during 2015 12,000 6.90
Vested during 2015 (8,000 ) 6.80
Forfeited during 2015 - -
Non-vested at April 30, 2015 28,000 6.98

Granted during 2016 3,000 5.22
Vested during 2016 (12,000 ) 6.94
Forfeited during 2016 - -
Non-vested at April 30, 2016 19,000 $ 6.66

For 2016 and 2015, the Company recognized $68,000 and $122,000 of compensation expense related to all shares of
common stock issued under the Equity Plan. As of April 30, 2016, there was $29,000 of total unrecognized
compensation expense related to shares of common stock issued under the Equity Plan, which is expected to be
recognized over the remaining vesting term not to exceed three years.

(14) INCOME TAXES:

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following:

Year Ended April 30,
2016 2015
(in thousands)

Current:
Federal $ (35 ) $ (676 )
State and local 126 16

91 (660 )
Deferred:
Federal (5,074 ) (1,387 )
State and local (228 ) (85 )

(5,302 ) (1,472 )
Total benefit for income taxes $ (5,211 ) $ (2,132 )
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The components of the net deferred income taxes are as follows:

April 30,
2016 2015
(in thousands)

Deferred income tax assets:
State tax loss carryforwards $4,591 $4,272
Accrued pension costs 4,716 4,274
Vacation accrual 161 210
Intangibles and deductible goodwill 3,798 4,835
Real estate basis differences 8,601 4,296
Other 34 177
Total deferred income tax assets 21,901 18,064

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Depreciable assets (2,074 ) (3,776 )
Deferred gains on investment assets (3,661 ) (4,423 )
Capitalized costs for financial reporting purposes, expensed for tax (316 ) (371 )
Total deferred income tax liabilities (6,051 ) (8,570 )
Valuation allowance for realization of certain deferred income tax assets (4,567 ) (3,657 )
Net deferred income tax asset $11,283 $5,837

A valuation allowance is provided when it is considered more likely than not that certain deferred tax assets will not
be realized. The valuation allowance of $4,567,000 as of April 30, 2016 relates primarily to net operating loss
carryforwards in states where the Company either has no current operations or its operations are not considered likely
to use the net operating loss carryforward prior to its expected expiration date. The net change in the total valuation
allowance for state deferred taxes for 2016 was an increase of $910,000 and for 2015 was an increase of $1,030,000.
The effect of the change in the valuation allowance is reflected in the state income taxes, net of federal income tax
effect, in the rate reconciliation table shown below.

The remaining state net operating loss carryforwards expire beginning in the fiscal years ending April 30, 2017
through April 30, 2036. The state net operating loss carryforwards of $112,055,000 expire in future fiscal years as
follows: 2017 - $0; 2018 - $0; 2019 - $0; 2020 - $1,969,000; 2021 - $32,000; and thereafter - $110,054,000.

The Company revised the federal and state tax rates on existing temporary differences due to changes in the tax rates
and state apportionments. The effect of the rate change is included in the Other amount in the rate reconciliation
below.
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The following table reconciles taxes computed at the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate from continuing operations
to the Company’s actual tax provision:

Year Ended April 30,
2016 2015
(in thousands)

Computed tax provision (benefit) at statutory rate $ (5,248 ) $ (2,000 )
Increase (reduction) in tax resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal income tax effect (93 ) (45 )
Meals and entertainment 3 11
Other 127 (98 )
Actual tax provision (benefit) $ (5,211 ) $ (2,132 )
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The Company utilized its U.S. federal net operating loss carryforward of approximately $14,416,000 and certain state
net operating loss carryforwards as of April 30, 2015 to offset taxable income resulting from the results of operations
for 2015. Such utilization was included in the results from discontinued operations. In addition, $7,419,000 of
goodwill associated with the Palm Coast acquisition remains amortizable as of April 30, 2016. At April 30, 2016, the
Company’s federal net operating loss available to offset taxes paid was approximately $194,000.

The Company is subject to U.S. federal income taxes, and also to various state and local income taxes. Tax regulations
within each jurisdiction are subject to interpretation and require significant judgment to apply. The Company is not
currently under examination by any tax authorities with respect to its income tax returns. Other than the U.S. federal
tax return, in nearly all jurisdictions, the tax years through the fiscal year ended April 30, 2012 are no longer subject to
examination due to the expiration of the statute of limitations.

ASC 740-10 clarifies the accounting for uncertain tax positions, prescribing a minimum recognition threshold a tax
position is required to meet before being recognized, and providing guidance on the derecognition, measurement,
classification and disclosure relating to income taxes. The following table summarizes the beginning and ending gross
amount of unrecognized tax benefits:

2016 2015
(in thousands)

Gross unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year $ 58 $ 58
Gross increases:
Additions based on tax positions related to current year - -
Additions based on tax positions of prior years - -
Gross decreases:
Reductions based on tax positions of prior years - -
Reductions based on the lapse of the applicable statute of limitations - -
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at end of year $ 58 $ 58

The total tax effect of gross unrecognized tax benefits at April 30, 2016 and 2015 was $58,000 as of each date which,
if recognized, would have an impact on the effective tax rate. The Company believes it is reasonably possible that the
liability for unrecognized tax benefits will not change in the next twelve months. The Company has elected to include
interest and penalties in its income tax expense. There were no amounts of interest or penalties accrued in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets at April 30, 2016 and 2015.

(15) SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
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During 2015, the Company and its indirect subsidiaries, Kable Distribution and Palm Coast, entered into a settlement
agreement with a significant customer resulting in the issuance by the Company to that customer of 825,000 shares of
its common stock. Refer to Note 17 for further detail regarding the settlement agreement. As a result of the issuance of
these shares, the Company increased its common stock account by $83,000 and its contributed capital account by
$4,191,000, which was based on the fair value of the Company’s common shares on the date of the settlement
agreement.

The Company recorded, net of tax, other comprehensive loss of $268,000 and $1,658,000 in 2016 and 2015 to account
for the net effect of changes to the unfunded portion of pension liability (refer to Note 13).

(16) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS:

Fulfillment Services – The Fulfillment Services business continued to experience a decline in revenues resulting from
reduced subscription sales, which has caused publishers to close some magazine titles, change subscription service
providers and seek more favorable terms from Palm Coast and its competitors when contracts are up for bid or
renewal. As a result, the operating results and current business trends of the Fulfillment Services business caused
significant changes to the projected cash flows of Fulfillment Services, which resulted in the Company testing for the
recoverability of the long-lived assets of Fulfillment Services.
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The impairment of long-lived assets is determined using a two-step process. The first step involves a comparison of
the estimated future undiscounted cash flows of the business unit to the carrying value of the long-lived assets. If the
carrying amount of a business unit exceeds its undiscounted cash flows, then the second step of the long-lived assets
impairment test must be performed. The second step of the long-lived assets impairment test compares the fair value
of the long-lived assets with the carrying values to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any. The fair values of
long-lived assets are determined using internal estimates, third party appraisals or market quotes for similar assets,
where available.

As a result of the long-lived asset impairment test performed as of April 30, 2016, the Company recorded a
$7,900,000 non-cash impairment charge related to the long-lived assets of its Fulfillment Services business. The
Company determined its intangible asset related to customer contracts and relationships was impaired by $4,806,000,
its real estate was impaired by $2,970,000 and certain of its fixed assets were impaired by $124,000. The fair value of
the customer contracts and relationships asset was determined based on a discounted cash flow approach using Level
3 inputs under ASC 820. The cash flows are those expected by market participants discounted at a rate based on an
assessment of the risk inherent in the future cash flows of the Fulfillment Services business. The real estate fair value
was determined based on third-party appraisals of properties and the fair value of fixed assets was determined based
on quoted market prices or prices for similar assets.

The impairment charge is included in the Impairment of assets line item in the consolidated statements of operations
and the consolidated statements of cash flows in the accompanying financial statements. In addition, the impairment
charge has been allocated on a pro-rata basis to the long-lived assets of the Fulfillment Services business using the
relative carrying amounts of those assets but not reducing the assets below their fair values.

The Fulfillment Services business recorded impairment charges of $771,000 in 2015 due to the discontinuance of the
development of certain software. The impairment charge included previously capitalized software costs, internal labor
costs and third party consulting costs.

Real Estate – During 2016 and 2015, the Company’s real estate business recorded impairment charges as a result of
third party appraisals that showed deterioration in the fair market values of certain properties from the prior year and
the impairment charges were included in results of operations for the applicable year. During 2016, certain real estate
with carrying amounts of $23,757,000 was written down to its fair value of $21,264,000, less estimated selling costs,
resulting in an impairment charge of $2,506,000. During 2015, certain real estate with carrying amounts of $5,296,000
was written down to its fair value of $3,515,000, less estimated selling costs, resulting in an impairment charge of
$1,809,000. In both years, the impairment charges were primarily related to take-back lots reacquired in prior years
that initially were recorded at fair market value less estimated costs to sell and are subsequently measured at the lower
of cost or fair market value less estimated costs to sell. In addition, 2016 included impairment charges related to
certain holdings of AMREP Southwest in the Hawk Site subdivision.
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(17) GAIN FROM SETTLEMENT:

During 2015, the Company and its indirect subsidiaries, Kable Distribution and Palm Coast, entered into a settlement
agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with a significant customer, Heinrich Bauer (USA) LLC (“Bauer”). Kable
Distribution and Bauer were parties to an ordinary course of business contract pursuant to which Kable Distribution
distributed certain magazines of Bauer in return for a commission. Palm Coast and Bauer were parties to an ordinary
course of business contract pursuant to which Palm Coast provided certain fulfillment services to Bauer in return for
service fees. During 2014, Kable Distribution received notice that its ordinary course of business contract with Bauer,
which provided Kable Distribution with a substantial amount of negative working capital liquidity, would not be
renewed upon its scheduled expiration in June 2014.
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Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, Kable Distribution agreed to eliminate the commission paid by Bauer to Kable
Distribution for distribution services through expiration of the contract period at June 30, 2014 and to amend the
payment procedures with respect to amounts received by Kable Distribution from wholesalers or retailers relating to
the domestic sale by Kable Distribution of Bauer magazines to such wholesalers or retailers; Palm Coast agreed to
reduce certain fees charged to Bauer for fulfillment services, with Bauer agreeing to extend the term of its fulfillment
agreement to at least December 31, 2018; and the Company agreed to issue to Bauer 825,000 shares of common stock
of the Company, with a fair market value of $4,274,000 and which represented approximately 10.3% of the
outstanding shares of common stock of the Company following such issuance, with Bauer agreeing to not sell or
transfer such shares for a period of six months. In return for such consideration, Bauer released all claims it may have
had against each of Kable Distribution, Palm Coast, the Company and its related persons, other than the obligations of
Kable Distribution, Palm Coast and the Company under the Settlement Agreement, the future obligations of Kable
Distribution under its distribution agreement as amended by the Settlement Agreement and the future obligations of
Palm Coast under its fulfillment agreement as amended by the Settlement Agreement. In particular, the Settlement
Agreement transferred to Bauer all amounts and accounts receivable owing from wholesalers to Kable Distribution
relating to the domestic sale by Kable Distribution of Bauer magazines, which totaled $22,626,000, and released
Kable Distribution from having to pay the accounts payable owed to Bauer relating to the domestic sale by Kable
Distribution of Bauer magazines other than to the extent amounts had been received by Kable Distribution or Bauer
on or after May 2014 from wholesalers or retailers relating to the domestic sale by Kable Distribution of Bauer
magazines to such wholesalers or retailers, which totaled $38,214,000. After considering the value of the various
components of the Settlement Agreement, Kable Distribution recorded a pretax gain of $11,155,000 during 2015. As
discussed in Note 2, the results of operations of Kable Distribution are included in discontinued operations in the
accompanying financial statements.

(18) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Non-cancelable leases

The Company is obligated under long-term, non-cancelable leases for equipment and various real estate properties.
Certain real estate leases provide that the Company will pay for taxes, maintenance and insurance costs and include
renewal options. Rental expense for 2016 and 2015 was approximately $159,000 and $314,000. The total minimum
rental commitments of $374,000 for fiscal years subsequent to April 30, 2016 are due as follows: 2017 - $323,000;
2018 - $38,000; 2019 - $7,000; 2020 - $6,000; and none thereafter.

AMREP Southwest

In connection with certain individual home site sales made prior to 1977 at Rio Rancho, New Mexico, if water,
electric and telephone utilities have not reached the lot site when a purchaser is ready to build a home, AMREP
Southwest is obligated to exchange a lot in an area then serviced by such utilities for the lot of the purchaser, without
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cost to the purchaser. AMREP Southwest has not incurred significant costs related to the exchange of lots.

At April 30, 2016, AMREP Southwest has posted bonds to support its future development commitments in Rio
Rancho of approximately $1,945,000.

(19) LITIGATION:

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the normal course of
business. While the ultimate results of these matters cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes that they
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, liquidity or results of
operations.

(20)INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN DIFFERENT INDUSTRY SEGMENTS:

The Company has identified two reportable segments in which it currently has business operations: (i) Fulfillment
Services and (ii) Real Estate operations. Fulfillment Services performs fulfillment and contact center services for
consumer publications, trade (business) publications, membership organizations, non-profit organizations, government
agencies and other direct marketers. Real Estate operations primarily include land sales and lease activities, which
involve the obtaining of approvals and the sale of both developed and undeveloped lots to homebuilders, commercial
users and others, as well as investments in commercial and investment properties. Certain common expenses as well
as identifiable assets are allocated among reportable segments based upon management’s estimate of each segment’s
absorption. Other revenues and expenses not identifiable with a specific segment are shown as a separate segment in
this presentation.
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The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 1. See Note 14 for disclosure
regarding differences between the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate to the actual tax provision. The following
tables set forth summarized data relative to the industry segments in which the Company operated (other than with
respect to discontinued operations) for the years indicated (in thousands):

Fulfillment
Services

Real Estate
Operations

Corporate
and
Other

Consolidated

Year ended April 30, 2016:
Revenues (a) $ 34,757 5,955 952 $ 41,664
Net income (loss) (7,597 ) (4,869 ) 2,242 (10,224 )
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (3,754 ) (2,067 ) 610 (5,211 )
Interest expense (income), net 875 2,614 (2,128 ) 1,361
Depreciation and amortization 2,756 112 109 2,977
Impairment of assets 7,900 2,506 - 10,406
EBITDA (b) 180 (1,704 ) 833 (691 )

Capital expenditures $ 795 $ 3 $ - $ 798

Year ended April 30, 2015:
Revenues (a) $ 43,684 $ 6,366 $ (260 ) $ 49,790
Net income (loss) $ (1,630 ) $ (3,367 ) $ 1,413 $ (3,584 )
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (877 ) (1,977 ) 722 (2,132 )
Interest expense (income), net 700 2,730 (1,815 ) 1,615
Depreciation and amortization 2,999 91 174 3,264
Impairment of assets 771 1,809 - 2,580
EBITDA (b) $ 1,963 $ (714 ) $ 494 $ 1,743

Capital expenditures $ 1,127 $ - $ - $ 1,127

(a)Revenue information provided for each segment includes amounts grouped as Other in the accompanying
statements of operations. Corporate and Other is net of intercompany eliminations.

(b)

The Company uses EBITDA (which the Company defines as income before net interest expense, income taxes,
depreciation and amortization, and non-cash impairment charges from continuing operations) in addition to net
income (loss) from continuing operations as a key measure of profit or loss for segment performance and
evaluation purposes.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s chief financial officer and the other person
whose certification accompanies this annual report on Form 10-K, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the
end of the period covered by this annual report on Form 10-K. As a result of such evaluation, the chief financial
officer and such other person have concluded that such disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of April
30, 2016 to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed in the reports the Company
files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and (ii) accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including the Company’s principal executive and principal financial
officers or persons performing such functions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding disclosure. The
Company believes that a control system, no matter how well designed and operated, cannot provide absolute
assurance that the objectives of the control system are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within a company have been detected.
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The report called for by Item 308(a) of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to Management’s Annual
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, included in Part II, “Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” of this annual report on Form 10-K.

No change in the Company’s system of internal control over financial reporting occurred during the most recent fiscal
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over financial
reporting.

Material Weakness Previously Identified

As of April 30, 2015, management had identified a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting
relating to the accounting for certain complex non-routine transactions; specifically, the Company did not utilize
sufficient technical accounting capabilities related to complex non-routine transactions within the Company’s pension
plan and tax accounting and disclosure in connection with the gain on the disposal of discontinued operations. In
response, the Company implemented the following remediation steps to address this material weakness: (i) regular
evaluation and enhancement of internal technical accounting capabilities, supported by the use of third-party advisors
and consultants to assist with areas requiring specialized technical accounting expertise and (ii) enhanced awareness to
identify complex technical accounting topics and early identification of situations which might require the use of
third-party advisors and consultants. As of April 30, 2016, management has assessed the effectiveness of the
Company’s remediation efforts with respect to this material weakness and the material weakness has been remediated.

Item 9B. Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information set forth under the headings “Election of Directors”, “The Board of Directors and its Committees” and
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2016 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “2016 Proxy Statement”) is
incorporated herein by reference. In addition, information concerning the Company’s executive officers is included in
Part I above under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant”.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information set forth under the headings “Compensation of Executive Officers” and “Compensation of Directors” in
the 2016 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information set forth under the headings “Common Stock Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the 2016 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by
reference.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information set forth under the headings “The Board of Directors and its Committees” and “Certain Transactions” in
the 2016 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information set forth under the subheadings “Audit Fees” and “Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures” in the 2016
Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a)                              1. Financial Statements. The following consolidated financial statements and supplementary
financial information are filed as part of this annual report on Form 10-K:

AMREP Corporation and Subsidiaries:

· Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

· Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm dated July 29, 2016 – RSM US LLP

· Consolidated Balance Sheets - April 30, 2016 and 2015

· Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Two Years Ended April 30, 2016

· Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Two Years Ended April 30, 2016
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· Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the Two Years Ended April 30, 2016

· Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Two Years Ended April 30, 2016

· Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules.

Financial statement schedules not included in this annual report on Form 10-K have been omitted because they are not
applicable or the required information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits.

The exhibits filed in this annual report on Form 10-K are listed in the Exhibit Index.

(b) Exhibits. See (a)3 above.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules. See (a)2 above.

52

Edgar Filing: AMREP CORP. - Form 10-K

103



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

AMREP CORPORATION
  (Registrant)

Dated: July 29, 2016
By: /s/ Clifford R. Martin
Clifford R. Martin
Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Christopher V.
Vitale

Christopher V. Vitale

Executive Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer & General Counsel
(Principal Executive Officer)

July 29,
2016

/s/ Clifford R. Martin

Clifford R. Martin

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Accounting Officer)

July 29,
2016

/s/ Edward B. Cloues,
II

Edward B. Cloues, II

Director July 29,
2016

/s/ Lonnie A.
Coombs

Lonnie A. Coombs

Director July 29,
2016

Director
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/s/ Theodore J.
Gaasche

Theodore J. Gaasche

July 29,
2016

/s/ Albert V. Russo

Albert V. Russo
Director July 29,

2016
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EXHIBIT INDEX

NUMBER ITEM

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation, as amended. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed March 21, 2007)

3.2 By-Laws, as amended. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q filed September 14, 2015)

4.1

Revolving Credit and Security Agreement dated May 13, 2010, by and among Kable Media Services, Inc.,
Kable Distribution Services, Inc., Kable Product Services, Inc., Kable News Company, Inc., Palm Coast
Data Holdco, Inc., Kable Staffing Resources LLC, Kable Specialty Packaging Services LLC, Kable News
International, Inc., Kable Fulfillment Services, Inc. and Palm Coast Data LLC, and PNC Bank, National
Association, as agent and lender. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed May 18, 2010)

4.2
Amendment, dated July 18, 2012, to the Revolving Credit and Security Agreement, dated May 13, 2010,
by and among Kable Media Services, Inc., et al and PNC Bank, National Association, as agent and lender.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed July 26, 2012)

4.3

First Amendment, dated October 1, 2012, to the Revolving Credit and Security Agreement, dated May 13,
2010, among Kable Media Services, Inc., et al and PNC Bank, National Association, as agent and lender.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 2,
2012)

4.4

Second Amendment and Joinder, dated December 31, 2012, to the Revolving Credit and Security
Agreement, dated May 13, 2010, among Kable Media Services, Inc., et al and PNC Bank, National
Association, as agent and lender. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed January 3, 2013)

4.5

Third Amendment, dated April 2, 2013, to the Revolving Credit and Security Agreement, dated May 13,
2010, among Kable Media Services, Inc., et al and PNC Bank, National Association, as agent and lender.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 3,
2013)

4.6

Fourth Amendment, dated June 11, 2014, to the Revolving Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of
May 13, 2010, among Kable Media Services, Inc., et al and PNC Bank, National Association, as agent
and lender. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
June 11, 2014)

4.7

Fifth Amendment, dated as of February 9, 2015, to the Revolving Credit and Security Agreement, dated
as of May 13, 2010, among Kable Media Services, Inc., et al and PNC Bank, National Association, as
agent and lender. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed February 9, 2015)
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4.8

Sixth Amendment, dated as of April 10, 2015, to the Revolving Credit and Security Agreement, dated as
of May 13, 2010, among Kable Staffing Resources LLC, Palm Coast Data Holdco, Inc., Palm Coast Data
LLC and FulCircle Media, LLC and PNC Bank, National Association, as agent and lender. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 10, 2015)

4.9
Loan Agreement, dated December 17, 2009, between AMREP Southwest Inc. and Compass Bank.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 22,
2009)
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4.10
$22,500,000 Promissory Note, dated December 17, 2009, of AMREP Southwest Inc. payable to the order of
Compass Bank. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
December 22, 2009)

4.11
First Amendment, dated April 29, 2011, to the Loan Agreement, dated December 17, 2009, between AMREP
Southwest Inc. and Compass Bank. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed May 2, 2011)

4.12
First Modification, dated April 29, 2011, to the Promissory Note, dated December 17, 2009, of AMREP
Southwest Inc. payable to the order of Compass Bank. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 2, 2011)

4.13
Second Amendment, dated August 24, 2012, to the Loan Agreement, dated December 17, 2009, between
AMREP Southwest Inc. and Kappa Lending Group, LLC. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 28, 2012)

4.14
Second Modification, dated August 24, 2012, to the Promissory Note, dated December 17, 2009, of AMREP
Southwest Inc. payable to Kappa Lending Group, LLC. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 28, 2012)

4.15
Third Amendment, dated November 19, 2012, to the Loan Agreement, dated December 17, 2009, between
AMREP Southwest Inc. and Kappa Lending Group, LLC. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 21, 2012)

4.16
Third Modification, dated November 19, 2012, to the Promissory Note, dated December 17, 2009, of AMREP
Southwest Inc. payable to Kappa Lending Group, LLC. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 21, 2012)

4.17
Consent Agreement, dated September 8, 2014, by and between Kappa Lending Group, LLC and AMREP
Southwest Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
September 9, 2014)

10.1 (a)
Amended and Restated Distribution Agreement, dated July 1, 2008, between Kappa Publishing Group, Inc. and
Kable Distribution Services, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed March 12, 2009)

10.2 (a)
First Amendment, dated February 14, 2011, to the Amended and Restated Distribution Agreement, dated July
1, 2008, between Kappa Publishing Group, Inc. and Kable Distribution Services, Inc. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed July 21, 2011)

10.3
Second Amendment, dated as of June 27, 2014, to Amended and Restated Distribution Agreement, dated as of
June 27, 2014, between Kappa Publishing Group, Inc. and Kable Distribution Services, Inc. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 1, 2014)

10.4
Tolling and Forbearance Agreement, dated August 13, 2012, between the Pension Benefit Guaranty
Corporation and Registrant. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form
8-K filed August 14, 2012)
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10.5
Settlement Agreement, dated as of August 30, 2013, between the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation and
Registrant. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
September 4, 2013)
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10.6
First Amendment to Settlement Agreement, dated as of July 15, 2015, between the Pension Benefit Guaranty
Corporation and Registrant. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed September 14, 2015)

10.7
Second Amendment to Settlement Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2016, between the Pension Benefit
Guaranty Corporation and Registrant. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed March 15, 2016)

10.8 (a)
Settlement Agreement, dated June 11, 2014, by and among Heinrich Bauer (USA) LLC, Kable Distribution
Services, Inc., Palm Coast Data LLC and AMREP Corporation. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed September 15, 2014)

10.9
Oil and Gas Lease and the Addendum thereto, each dated September 8, 2014, by and among AMREP
Southwest Inc., Outer Rim Investments, Inc., Thrust Energy, Inc. and Cebolla Roja, LLC.  (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 9, 2014)

10.10
Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2015, between DFI Holdings, LLC, KPS Holdco, LLC
and American Investment Republic Co. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed February 9, 2015)

10.11
Promissory Note, dated as of February 9, 2015, made by DFI Holdings, LLC and KPS Holdco, LLC in favor
of American Investment Republic Co. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed February 9, 2015)

10.12
Transition Services Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2015, between DFI Holdings, LLC, KPS Holdco, LLC
and American Investment Republic Co. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed February 9, 2015)

10.13

Release Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2015, by American Investment Republic Co. in favor of Kable
Media Services, Inc., Kable Distribution Services, Inc., Kable News Company, Inc., Kable News
International, Inc., Kable Distribution Services of Canada, Ltd. and Kable Product Services, Inc. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 9, 2015)

10.14

Release Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2015, by Kable Media Services, Inc., Kable Distribution Services,
Inc., Kable News Company, Inc., Kable News International, Inc., Kable Distribution Services of Canada, Ltd.
and Kable Product Services, Inc. in favor of American Investment Republic Co. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 9, 2015)

10.15
Release Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2015, by DFI Holdings, LLC, KPS Holdco, LLC and Michael P.
Duloc in favor of American Investment Republic Co. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 9, 2015)

10.16

Line of Credit Promissory Note, dated as of February 9, 2015, made by Kable Media Services, Inc., Kable
Distribution Services, Inc., Kable News Company, Inc., Kable News International, Inc., Kable Distribution
Services of Canada, Ltd. and Kable Product Services, Inc. in favor of American Investment Republic Co.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 9, 2015)
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10.17

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2015, by Kable Media Services, Inc., Kable Distribution
Services, Inc., Kable News Company, Inc., Kable News International, Inc., Kable Distribution Services of
Canada, Ltd., Kable Product Services, Inc., DFI Holdings, LLC and KPS Holdco, LLC in favor of American
Investment Republic Co. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form
8-K filed February 9, 2015)
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10.18

Security Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2015, by Kable Media Services, Inc., Kable Distribution
Services, Inc., Kable News Company, Inc., Kable News International, Inc., Kable Distribution Services of
Canada, Ltd., Kable Product Services, Inc., DFI Holdings, LLC and KPS Holdco, LLC in favor of
American Investment Republic Co. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed February 9, 2015)

10.19

Letter Agreement, dated January 20, 2016, among Kable Media Services, Inc., Kable Distribution
Services, Inc., Kable News Company, Inc., Kable News International, Inc., Kable Distribution Services of
Canada, Ltd., Kable Product Services, Inc., DFI Holdings, LLC and KPS Holdco, LLC and American
Republic Investment Co. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed March 15, 2016)

10.20
Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2015, between TSJ Staffing, LLC and Kable Staffing
Resources LLC. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed April 10, 2015)

10.21 (b)
2006 Equity Compensation Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to Registrant’s Proxy
Statement for its 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders forming a part of Registrant’s Definitive Schedule
14A filed August 14, 2006)

10.22 (b)
Form of Restricted Stock Award under the 2006 Equity Compensation Plan. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 17, 2013)

10.23 (b)
Change of Control Agreement, dated as of March 5, 2014, between Palm Coast Data LLC and Rory
Burke. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March
7, 2014)

21 (c) Subsidiaries of Registrant.

23 (c) Consent of RSM US LLP.

31.1 (c) Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

31.2 (c) Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

32 (c) Certification required by Rule 13a-14(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

101.INS (c) XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH (c) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema.

101.CAL (c) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase.

101.DEF (c) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase.

101.LAB (c) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase.
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101.PRE (c) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase.

(a) Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment under Rule 24b-2 under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

(b) Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement in which directors or officers participate.

(c) Filed herewith.
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